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NOTICE

The 15th Annual General Meeting of the members of SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED will be held on Friday , the
29th day of September, 2006 at 10.00 AM at India Corporate Centre, J-2/B-1, Mohan Cooperative , Mathura
Road , New Delhi-110044 to transact the following business-

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March ,
2006 and Balance Sheet as on that date and the Report of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of MR.Y.HARI SHANKAR , who retires by rotation , and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint a Director in place of MR.KAILASH .B. GOEL, who retires by rotation, and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To appoint a Director in place of MR.MUKESH AGGARWAL, who retires by rotation, and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment

5. To appoint M/S MEHRA GOEL & CO, Chartered Accountants, the retiring Auditors of the Company as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting at the remuneration to be decided by the Board
of Directors .

SPECIAL BUSINESS
6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution(s) as an
Ordinary Resolution:

a) “Resolved that MR. RAKESH AGGARWAL, who was appointed as an Additional Director with
effect from 9th January, 2006 by the Board of Directors and who hold office as such up to the date of
this meeting and is eligible for appointment as Director, and in respect of whom notice under section
257 of the Companies Act ,1956 has been received , be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
company liable to retire by rotation.”

b) “Resolved that MR. RAM NIWAS JAIN, who was appointed as an Additional Director with effect
from 9th January, 2006 by the Board of Directors and who hold office as such up to the date of this
meeting and is eligible for appointment as Director, and in respect of whom notice under section
257 of the Companies Act, 1956 has been received, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the
company liable to retire by rotation.”

c) “Resolved that DR. SHAM SUNDER BANSAL, who was appointed as an Additional Director with
effect from 9th January , 2006 by the Board of Directors and who hold office as such up to the date
of this meeting and is eligible for appointment as Director, and in respect of whom notice under
section 257 of the Companies Act , 1956 has been received , be and is hereby appointed as a
Director of the company liable to retire by rotation.”

7. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution :

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 198 ,269 ,308 ,309 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act ,1956 , read with Schedule XlIl of the Companies Act , 1956 (including modification(s)
or re-modification (s) thereof for the time being in force), the consent of the members of the company be
and is hereby given for the appointment of MR .NISHANT AGGARWAL, as Whole time Director of the
company with effect from 1st day of June, 2006 for a period of 3 years”

“Resolved further that the terms and conditions for the payment of Remuneration (including “Minimum
Remuneration” in case of absence or inadequacy of profits) to Mr. Nishant Aggarwal, as approved and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on 30th May, 2006, as given hereunder
be and are hereby approved:

SALARY
Rs.30,000/-per month w.e.f 1st June, 2006.

TELEPHONE
Two telephones at residence at the company’s cost however, Personal long distance calls will be billed to
the appointee.



CAR
The Company will provide a Chauffer driven car for office use only to the appointee.

MEDICAL REIMBURSEMENT
Reimbursement of medical expenses incurred in India and abroad including hospitalization, nursing and
surgical expense for self and family.

PROVIDENT FUND / GRAUITY
Payable at a rate not exceeding fifteen days salary for each completed year of service.

LEAVE TRAVEL CONCESSION
Reimbursement of actual traveling expenses for proceeding on leave to any place in India and return from
there once in a year in respect of himself and family.

CLUB FEE
Fees of clubs subject to maximum of two clubs, this will not include admission and life membership fee.

PERSONAL ACCIDENT INSURANCE
Accidental Insurance in accordance with the scheme as applicable to the senior employees of the
company.

MINIMUM REMUNERATION

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein as mentioned above, when in any financial year
during the currency of tenure of MR .NISHANT AGGARWAL, as Whole time Director, the company has no
profits or its profits are inadequate as specified the company will pay salary and perquisites as minimum
remuneration.

8. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
SPECIAL RESOLUTION.:

“Resolved that the consent of the company be and is hereby accorded in terms of Section 293(1)(a)
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 and subject to such other approvals
as may be required for mortgaging and/or charging by the Board of Directors of the Company on all
the immovable and movable properties wheresoever situated, present or future etc. in order to secure
the term loans/ working capital facilities from banks/financial institutions for a amount not exceeding up
to a maximum limit of Rs.200 Crore at a time apart from the temporary loans in the ordinary course of
business.”

9. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as a
SPECIAL RESOLUTION.:

“Resolved that the consent of the shareholders of the company be and is hereby accorded for
diversifying/switching over from the stated Object No.1 at Page No.19 of the Prospectus dated 15th
June, 2005 to the expansion of existing capacity of Knitted Dyed Fabrics and Knitted Garments instead
of Yarn Dyeing Plant.”

By order of the Board of Directors
For SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Place : New Delhi B.B.SHARMA
Dated : 04.08.2006 COMPANY SECRETARY
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Notes

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE
PROXY FORM DULY COMPLETED MUST REACH THE COMPANY'S REGISTERED OFFICE AT LEAST
48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF THE MEETING.

2. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday,
19th day of September, 2006 to Friday, the 29th day of September, 2006( both days inclusive).

3. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement read with Section
173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of re-appointment of Directors and the Special Business
set out above is mentioned below.

4. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the meeting and are requested
not to bring any articles , briefcase, handbags, carry bags etc. as the same will not be allowed to be
taken inside the venue. Further the company or any of its officials shall not be responsible for their
articles, bags etc. being misplaced, stolen or damaged at the Meeting place.

5. NO GIFT(S) SHALL BE DISTRIBUTED AT THE ENSUING 15TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF YOUR
COMPANY.

6. Members are requested to notify immediately change of address, if any, to their Depository Participants
(DPs) in respect of their electronic share accounts, and to the Company or its Share Transfer Agent in
respect of their physical share folios.

7. Members who are holding shares in identical order or names in more than one folio are requested to
sent to the company the details of such folios together with the Share Certificates for consolidating
their holdings in one folio. The Share Certificates will be returned to the Members after making requisite
changes thereon.

8. All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection at the Registered office
of the company on all working days expect Saturday between 11.00 AM to 1.00PM up to the date of the
Annual General Meeting

EXPLANATORY STATEMENTS
(Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement read with Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956). A
brief Resume of the Director(s) offering themselves for re-appointment is given below:

Item No.2 of the Notice

Mr.Y.Hari Shankar, aged about 64 years, is a Non-Executive Independent Director of your company. He
has done his M.A. in Economics and is from IPS cadre of 1966 batch of Haryana. He was Secretary to the
Government of India (Security) and presently engaged in providing consultancy on management related
issues. He has very vast experience in various fields. Keeping in view his experience and knowledge, it will
be in the interest of your company to re-appoint him as Director on the Board of your company, liable to
retire by rotation. Your Directors recommended the resolution for approval. Except MR.Y.HARI SHANKAR
no other Director is interested either directly or indirectly, in this resolution.

Item No.3 of the Notice

Mr.Kailash B Goel, aged about 39 years, is a Non-Executive Independent Director of your company. He
is a Chartered Accountant by profession and Director in various companies. He has very vast experience.
Keeping in view his experience and knowledge, it will be in the interest of your company to re-appoint
him as Director on the Board of your company, liable to retire by rotation. Your Directors recommended
the resolution for approval. Except MR.KAILASH B GOEL no other Director is interested either directly or
indirectly, in this resolution.

Item No.4 of the Notice

Mr. Mukesh Aggarwal, aged about 39 years, is an Executive Non Independent Director of your company.
He is Commerce Graduate and has very vast experience in managing the affairs of garment manufacturing
enterprises. Keeping in view his experience and knowledge, it will be in the interest of your company to
re-appoint him on the Board of your company, liable to retire by rotation. Your Directors recommended the
resolution for approval. Except MR .MUKESH AGGARWAL, no other Director is interested either directly or
indirectly, in this resolution.



Item No.6 of the Notice

To broad base the constitution of the Board of Directors Mr. Rakesh Aggarwal, MrRam Niwas Jain and
Dr. Sham Sunder Bansal were appointed as Additional Directors with effect from 9th January, 2006 who
hold office as such up to the date of this meeting and are eligible for re-appointment as Directors, keeping
in view their experience and knowledge, your Board of Directors is of the opinion to pass the respective
resolutions.

Item No.7 of the Notice

In order to broad base the composition of the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors, in their meeting
held on 2nd day of June, 2006, inducted MR.NISHANT AGGARWAL, as Whole time Director with effect from
1st day of June, 2006. Mr. Nishant Aggarwal, aged about 25 years is a B.E (Electronics & Communication)
and Master in Business Administration (MBA) has near about 3 years of relevant experience in various
fields of industry. The Board of Directors of your company is of the opinion that his induction in the board
as an Executive Director will further accelerate the future growth prospects of the company. Your Directors
recommended the resolution for approval. Except MR. NISHANT AGGARWAL other Director is interested
either directly or indirectly, in this resolution. Mr. Nishant Aggarwal is related to Mr. HRG/Parveen Garg.

Item No.8 of the Notice

Section 293(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 1956 provides that a Company can not borrow monies from the
financial institutions for its term loan/ working capital requirements or create mortgage over its properties in
respect of such facilities except previous with the positive consent from the shareholders. Accordingly, your
Board of Directors recommended the relevant previous resolution for your approval.

Item No.9 of the Notice

At page number 19 of the prospectus dated 15th June, 2005, the company has proposed to set up a
new Yarn Dyeing Plant, but considering the market trends and competitiveness for the said project, the
management has formed the opinion to diversify from this object for the exansion in existing capacities
of Knitted Dyed Fabric and Knitted Garments instead of Yarn Dyeing Plant. Accordingly, your Board of

Directors recommended the relevant resolution for your approval.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members of SPL Industries Limited

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in
presenting the15th Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and the Audited Financial
Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2006.

Operations

Your Directors, while welcoming the new
shareholders, convey their thanks to all those, who
have supported the company'’s first offer of Equity
Shares to the Public, which has been a grand
success. The financial results of the company for
the year ending 31st March, 2006 are given below:

(Figures in thousand)

2005-2006 2004-2005
Profit Before Tax &

Adjustment 191085 152176
Less: Provision for

Taxation

Current Income Tax 24000 22000
Deferred Income Tax 12050 11100
Fringe benefit Tax 2760 -
Income Tax paid for

earlier years 27 -
Weallth Tax 135 80
Profit After Tax 152113 118996

Add: Profit brought
forward from previous

year 627841 608845
Less: Bonus Shares issued - 100000
Balance Carried to

Balance Sheet 779954 627841

Overall Performance

During the year under report, your company has
exported 11.81 million pcs of Garments as against
6.17 million pcs. of Garments during the previous
year. The sales turnover at Rs.2,607,305,956/- is
increased by 48.75 % against the previous year
figures of Rs.1,752,770,912/- The Net Profit (profit
after interest, depreciation and taxes etc) has
shown an increase of 27.83 % in comparison to the
previous year .

Growth and Future Plans

The removal of quota has brought significant
opportunities of growth for the Indian Garment
Manufacturers and Exporters. The industry is now
geared up for taking advantage of the post WTO
regime. The scope for capacity expansion plans
have increased along with increase in global
enquires/orders. Your directors are of the opinion
that your company is well positioned to maintain
and enhance its position in the Apparel Industry and
its customer base will continue to grow further.

Dividend

To conserve the resources of the company, the
Board of Directors of your company has decided not
to recommend any dividend to its stakeholders.

Fixed Deposits

During the year under review, your company has
not accepted any fixed deposits from the general
public.

Consolidated Financial Statements

As required by Accounting Standard 21, the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company
are annexed and form an integral part of the report.

Statutory Disclosures

As required under Section 212 of the Companies
Act, 1956, the Statement and Annual Accounts of
Subsidiary Company along with the report of the
Board of Directors and respective Auditors Reports
are annexed and forms an integral part of this
report.

The Statement of employees required under Section
217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975
is not annexed as there are none of the Employees
drawing salary exceeding the present limits as
provided under the said Act.

The Statement containing the necessary
information as required under Section 217(1)(e)
of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Rule 2 of
Companies ( Disclosures of Particulars in the Report
of the Board of Directors) Rules 1988, relating to
conservation of energy, technology absorption,
foreign exchange earnings and outgo are annexed
hereto and forms an integral part of this report.

Pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, a
report on Corporate Governance and Management
Discussion and Analysis are annexed hereto and
form an integral part of this report.

Director’s Responsibility Statement
As required under Section 217(2AA) of the
Companies Act, 1956 this is to confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating
to material departures.

2. Such accounting policies have been selected
and applied consistently and made judgments/
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit of the Company for that period.

3. Proper and sufficient care have been taken
with best of knowledge and ability, for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the said Act
for safeguarding the assets of the company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities.



4. The annual accounts have been prepared on
going concern basis.

Auditors

M/s Mehra Goel & Co, Chartered Accountants,
the statutory auditors of the company, will retire a
the conclusion of this meeting and being eligible
offer themselves for re appointment. The Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors recommend
the re- appointment of M/s Mehra Goel & Co., as
the statutory auditors of the company for the year
2006-2007.

Auditors Report
Auditors Report to the shareholders of the company
does not contain any qualification.

Directors

During the year under review Mr.Naresh Aggarwal
and Mr.Suresh Aggarwal have resigned from the
Board of Directors due to their pre-occupation and
Mr.Ram Babu Bansal, have resigned due to health
reasons .Accordingly the Board of Directors of the
company has co -opted the three new directors viz
Dr. Sham Sunder Bansal, Mr. Rakesh Aggarwal and
Mr. Ram Niwas Jain as non executive independent
Directors on the Board of the company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956 and Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr.Y.Hari Shankar, Mr.Kailash B Goel, Mr.
Mukesh Aggarwal, retires by rotation and are eligible
for re-appointment and your Board of Directors
recommends you to pass the relevant resolutions.

Acknowledgement.
Your Directors wish to place on record the
overwhelming responses received from the
stakeholders of the company during its IPO and
wish to thanks them.

Your Directors wish to place on record their
appreciation for the team spirit, dedication and
commitment shown by the work force of the
company during this year.

Your Directors wish to thank the financial institutions,
banks, business associates and suppliers for the
consistent support received from them.

New Delhi H.R.GUPTA
04.08.2006 CHAIRMAN & M.D

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Information under Section 217(1)(e) of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of
particulars in the report of Board of Directors) Rules,
1988 and forming part of the Directors report for the
year ended 31st March, 2006.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(a) Energy conservation measures taken:

The Company has taken various measures and
steps to conserve the energy viz:

* Optimization and economical use of various
forms of energy.

* Compressors and Capacitors installed to
improve power factors.

* Department wise monitoring of energy
consumption.

* Installation of wind ventilators, resulting in
saving of power cost etc.

(b) Additional Investments and proposals, if
any being implemented for reduction in
consumption of energy.

There is no such proposal as such for additional
investment. The status of power and fuel
consumption is given below in Form A

FORM - A
a) Power and Fuel
Consumption
Electricity

2005-2006 2004-2005

Purchase units(Nos) 10065112 9566310

Total Cost (Rs) 42318762 40454231

Rate per Unit (Rs) 4.21 4.23
b) Own Generation-D.G.set

Generated units (Nos) 3880540 2121222

Diesel Cost (Rs) 35739770 15370880

Diesel Cost per unit (Rs) 9.21 7.29
B. PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, RESEARCH
& DEVLOPMENT

The Company hasindependent R&D department
for its different divisions which regularly provides
suggestions for improvement so as to minimize
the cost of production and improve the quality.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO

Activities relating to exports, initiatives
taken to increase export, development of
new export markets for product services
and export plans:

There have been concerted efforts to maintain
export performance in Garments. The Company
is also exploring markets for export of other
varieties of its products. During the year under
review, the details of the Foreign Exchange
earnings and outgo are as under:

Amount in Rs.
Particulars 2005-2006 2004-2005
Earnings in Foreign 2,240,304,702 1,390,584,668
Currencies FOB
value of Exports
Expenditure in
Foreign Currency

346,531,608 209,057,682
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERALL VIEW

The business efforts during the year were directed
towards the improvement in the Knitting, Dyeing,
Processing, Embroidery, Cutting, Finishing and
Stitching Divisions of the company, so that turnover
and the production capacities of the different
divisions be increased.

1. During the year under review out of the proceed
of the public issue, the company has utilized
Rs.4296 Lacs for meeting capital expenditure
and share issue expenses as per the objects of
the IPO.

2. The Company hastoinvestasumofRs.517 Lacs
towards the setting of Yarn Dyeing Plant, but the
Management has formed the opinion that this
investment is not remunerative and decided to
diversify for the expansion of existing capacity
of knitted dyed fabric and knitted garments
for which permission of the shareholders have
been sought elsewhere in this report.

3. All the investment made above are as per the
objects as detailed in the Prospectus to the IPO
and the investments are made for expansion,
up gradation / Installing state of art machineries
at the plants located at Faridabad.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

1. The Company has in place proper and adequate
internal control systems and procedures to
ensure efficiency in decision making for optimal
utilization and protection of resources and
compliance with applicable statutory laws and
regulations as also internal policies before the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors.

2. The Company’s system and processes in all
areas are regularly reviewed by internal Audit
team and their reports are placed before the
Audit Committee of the Board.

3. Management information reports are complied
every month foranalysis and review of performance
and to enable implementation of corrections
wherever required. Quarterly reports are also
discussed in the Audit Committee meetings.

HUMAN RESOURCES

1. The overall HR efforts were directed towards
upgrading technical skill levels and teamwork
and increase manpower productivity.

2. The system of annual appraisals, key
performance areas and job description continue
to be implemented.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND
CONSERVATION OF RESOURCES

Company is conscious of its responsibility to the
society at large and to its employees in each of its units.
Adequate arrangements have been made for the safety
in respect of air, water and noise pollution etc.

FUTURE PLANS & OUT LOOK

At SPL, we have expanded manufacturing capacity
of knitted fabrics from 5000 MT PA to 8000 MT.
Garments from 90 lac pieces to PA to 132 lac
pieces. The company has also added new capacity
of 12 Lac pieces PA in Home textiles.

Looking at the huge demand, change in tradition,
confidence of our Clients, acceptability of our
products of new designs and the increasing trend
of our clientele towards the knitted garments in US
market the company is further expanding its garment
capacity to 15-16 lac pieces PA immediately.

The company has also has plans to enter into the
domestic market very soon. To make and market
the most trusted apparel brand in the textile industry,
company’s USP is to provide its customers with
best of quality, colors and innovative products at
the most competitive prices.

The company will surely benefit its shareholders in
the years to come.

STATEMENT OF CAUTION

Representations and statements made under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” is based
on the projection and expectation on the basis
of present market conditions. Actual results may
materially differ due to several factors which could
influence the company’s business operations
such as demand and supply conditions, prices
of input, changes in Government levies and
regulations, industrial relations and other economic
developments in the country.



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - 2005-2006

Company’ philosophy on code of governance

SPL’s business objective and that of its management
and employees is to manufacture and market the
company products in such a way that can create
wealth and values that can be sustained over the long
term for the customer, shareholders, employees and
business associates and the national economy.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board

The total number of Directors on Board of the
Company as on 31st March, 2006 is ten and has
a optimum combination of five Executive Non
Independent Directors and Five Non Executive
Independent Directors with considerable expertise
and experience. Non of the Directors on the Board
is a member of more than 10 committees and

Chairman of more than 5 committees.

Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings & AGM and number of companies in which the
directors is a member of the Board or its Committees as a member or chairperson thereof during

the financial year

Name of the Category Number of | Number of | No of other | No of other | No of

Director & Board Board Companies| Committees | other Board/

Designation Meetings | Meetings in which a | in which Committees

Held Attended | Director a Member |in which a
Chairperson

Mr..H.R.Gupta Executive/non |24 24 3 01 Na
independent

Mr.Vijay Jindal Executive/non (24 24 n.a. n.a. Na
independent

Mr.Praveen Garg Executive/non (24 23 n.a. 01 Na
independent

Mr.Pankaj Garg Executive/non (24 23 n.a. n.a. Na
independent

Mr. Mukesh Aggarwal|Executive/non |24 22 3 01 Na
independent

Mr. Rakesh Aggarwal |Non-Executive/|24 08 2 n.a. 01
independent

Mr. Ram Niwas Jain  |Non-Executive/|24 09 2 01 Na
independent

Dr. S.S.Bansal Non-Executive/|24 08 1 n.a. Na
independent

Mr. Y.Harishankar Non-Executive/|24 23 n.a. 01 01
independent

Mr..Kailash B.Goel  |Non-Executive/|24 20 5 01 Na
independent

Date and number of Board Meetings held

The Board met twenty four times during the year
on 8.04.2005, 4/05/2005, 21.05.2005, 03.06.2005,
18.07.05,05.08.2005,31.08.2005,12.09.2005,26.09
.2005,11.10.2005,27.10.2005,11.11.2005,8.12.200
5,31.12.2005,06.01.2006,9.01.2006,13.01.2006,14.
01.2006,27.01.2006,30.01.2006,15.02.2006,06.03.
2006,11.03.2006 and 24.03.2006.

Code of Conduct

The code of conduct in line with the provisions
of clause 49 of the Listing Agreement has been
framed/ adopted by the Board and is applicable
to all the members of the Board and Senior
Management Executives. The Company Secretary is
the Compliance Officer for the purpose of this code.
The code envisages that the Board Members and
senior Executives observes the highest standards

of ethical conduct and integrity and work to the best
of their ability and judgments.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was re-constituted on 14th
day of January, 2006 and consists of Mr. Rakesh
Aggarwal, MrRam Niwas Jain and Mr.Mukesh
Aggarwal, Whole time Director of the company.
The Statutory Auditors, Senior GM (Accounts)
and internal auditors of the company also attend
such meetings. Mr. Rakesh Aggarwal who is
an independent director is the Chairman of the
Committee.

Power, Role and Review of Information by
Audit Committee

The role and terms of reference of the Audit
Committee coversthe areas mentioned under clause
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49 of the Listing Agreement and section 292A of the
Companies Act, 1956 besides other terms as may
be referred by the Board of Directors. These interalia
includes review of the company’s financial report
and disclosure of financial information to ensure
that the financial statements are correct, sufficient
and credible. The main role of the audit committee is
to review annual and quarterly financial statements
with the management before submission to the
Board and to insure the adequacy of internal control
system with the management and to review the
company'’s financial risks/ management policies.

Date and number of Audit Committee Meeting’s held
The Audit Committee met five times during the year
on 10.04.2005, 18.07.2005, 26.10.2005, 27.01.2006,
31.03.2006.

Attendance of Directors.

Name of Designation | No of No of
Member Meetings | Meetings
held attended

Mr. Rakesh Aggarwal, | Independent |5 4
Chairman of non
Committee Executive

Director
Mr R.N.JAIN Independent |5 5
Member of non
Committee Executive

Director
Mr. Mukesh Aggarwal | Executive 5 5
Member of non
Committee Independent

Director

Subsidiary Companies

The Company has one unlisted Indian 100%
subsidiary company namely Mode Prints Ltd. The
turnover/net worth of the subsidiary company
does not exceed 20% of the turnover/net worth of
the holding company. The minutes and all other
periodical information’s of the subsidiary company
is placed before the Board of Directors of the
holding company.

Detail of Remuneration of Directors

DISCLOSURES

Basis of related party transactions

No transaction of a material nature has been
entered into by the Company with the Directors,
Senior Management personnel and their relatives
that may have a potential conflict with the interest of
the company except as disclosed under the related
party transactions as per Accounting Standard 18
“Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute
of Charted Accountants of India which are set out
in the annual report

Disclosures of Accounting Treatment
In the preparation of the financial statements, the
Company has followed the accounting standards
issued by the ICAI. The significant accounting
policies which are consistently applied have been
set out in the Notes to the annual report.

Risk Management

Board of Directors was apprised of the assessment
done of risk factors and the management policy for
control and minimization of the same during the
year. There is a system to control and assess the
risk management system on continuous basis.

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration package of the Management/
Whole time Directors is based on their performance
and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.
There is one Remuneration Committee comprising
of Mr Ram Niwas Jain, Mr. Sham Sunder Bansal
and MrY.Hari Shankar, which meets four times
during the year.

Remuneration Policy

The Company is continuously following a policy of
attracting the high caliber talent and retaining the
services of the performance oriented personnel.

The details of remuneration paid to the Executive Directors during the year are given below:

Name Salary(Rs.) Contribution to House Rent Perquisites | Total(Rs.)
ProvidentFund/ Allowance
Super,Fund
H.R.Gupta 7,80,000/-pa nil - - 7,80,000/-pa
Vijay Jindal 6,00,000/-pa nil - - 6,00,000/-pa
Praveen Garg 5,40,000/-pa nil - - 5,40,000/-pa
Pankaj Garg 5,40,000/-pa nil - - 5,40,000/-pa
Mukesh Aggarwal | 5,40,000/-pa nil - - 5,40,000/-pa

Executive Directors are appointed for a period
of three years on the terms and conditions as
approved by the shareholders from time to time
and the remuneration and other perquisites are as
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
Schedule XIlI. The Independent and Non Executive

Directors do not get any remuneration except sitting
fee of Rs.2000/- per meeting attended by them.

Management
Management Discussion & Analysis Report is
annexed and form a part of the Directors Report.



Shareholders Committee

The Shareholder’'s Committee was reconstituted
on 22nd July, 2005 and at present consists of Mr.
Y. Hari Shankar, Mr. H. R .Gupta and Mr. Praveen
Garg. The said committee normally meets once
in a period of three months to oversee proper re
dressal of grievance of the shareholders/investors,
matters of transfer/transmission of shares,sub
division/consolidation and issue of new/duplicate
certificates. In the normal course of business, all the
complaints of the investors are looked after by the
Registrar and Transfer Agent of the company.

Name of Director heading the Share transfer
Committee
Mr. H.R.GUPTA, DIRECTOR

Name of Compliance Officer
Mr.B.B.Sharma, Company Secretary

Number of Complaints received, not solved &
pending transfer

17 complaints were received and replied to the entire
satisfaction of the shareholders during the year
under review. There were no pending complaints as
on 31st March, 2006. There is no share transfer or
any other correspondence pending for more than
fiftheen days as on that date.

General Body Meetings

The last three annual General Meetings of the
Company were held on 27.06.2005, 28.09.2004 and
30.09.2003 at the registered office of the company
at 5/66, 3rd floor, K.C.House, Padam Singh Road,
Karol Bagh, New Delhi-110005. The Company has
gone public by its IPO on 29th day of June, 2005
for the first time and this is the first annual general
meeting of the company since than.

Details of non compliance, penalties etc
imposed by Stock Exchange, SEBI etc. on any
matter related to capital market during the last
three years.

No such penalty or structure have been imposed
on the company since listing of its securities on
THE NATIONAL STOCK EXCHANGE OF INDIA LTD.
and THE BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD. or the
Securities Exchange Board of India(SEBI) or any
other statutory authority on any matter related to
Capital Market during the last three years.

Means of Communication
(a) Quarterly results . Through publication

(b) News papers wherein : The Financial Express/
Results normally Economics Time
published The Nav Bharat Times

(Hindi)

General Shareholder information

AGM :15TH Annual General Meeting

Date : 29th September, 2006

Time : 10 am

Venue : India Corporate Centre,
J-2/B-1 Extension, Mohan Cooperative
Mathura Road, New Delhi-44

Financial Year 2006-2007

Un audited results for quarter
ending June 30th , 2006

July, 2006

Un audited results for quarter
ending September,30th 2006

October, 2006

Un audited results for quarter
ending December 31th, 2006

January, 2007

Un audited results for quarter
ending March, 31th 2007

April, 2007

Date of Book Closure
from 19th September, 2006 to 29th September,
2006(both days inclusive)

Listing on Stock Exchange(s)
The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. and The
Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.

ISIN CODE NO. - INE978G01016
SCRIPT NAME . SPLIL
SCRIPT CODE . 532651

DATE OF ALLOTMENT : 18.07.2005

Market Price Data

Month High Low
July, 2005 113.00 90.00
August, 2005 114.00 97.25
September, 2005 114.95 88.40
October, 2005 100.90 67.50
November, 2005 86.00 68.00
December, 2005 88.90 71.00
January, 2006 85.90 70.20
February, 2006 77.70 64.55
March, 2006 82.00 55.60

Registrar and Transfer Agent :

KARVY COMPUTERSHARES PRIVATE LTD
“KARVY HOUSE" 46, AVENUE 4, STREET NO.1.
BANJARA HILLS, HYDERABAD-500034

ANDHRA PRADESH ( INDIA)

TEL. NO. 91-40233102545,FAX NO. 91-402331968
E-mail: mailmanager@Karvy.com

Website: www.karvy.com
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Distribution of Shareholding
Consolidated Distribution Schedule as on March 31th, 2006

Category(Amount) No.of Holders % of Holding Total Shares
1-5000 6552 88.684349% 838886
5001-10000 330 4.466703% 279555
10001-20000 160 2.165674% 251833
20001-30000 83 1.123443% 214524
30001-40000 35 0.473741% 126280
40001-50000 35 0.473741% 167174
50001-100000 57 0.771521% 434483
100001& above 136 1.840823% 26687269
Total 7388 100% 29000004

Consolidated Shareholding Pattern(as on March 31th, 2006

S.No Category No. of Cases | Total Shares % To Equity

8 1 PROMOTERS 45 17665902 60.916895 %
§ 2 BODIES CORPORATES 312 2767961 9.544692 %
% 3 RESIDENT INDIVIDUALS 6502 2361963 8.144699 %
§' 4 MUTUAL FUNDS 10 2133152 7.355696 %
© 5 DIRECTORS 5 1834102 6.324489 %
§ 6 FOREIGN INSTITUTIONAL INVESTORS 5 1769339 6.101168 %
< 7 HUF 313 234776 0.809572 %
1 8 CLEARING MEMBERS 130 190568 0.657131 %
9 NON RESIDENT INDIANS 65 41241 0.142210 %

10 BANKS 1 1000 0.003448 %

Total 7388 29000004 100.00 %

Dematerialization of Shares and liquidity
Percentage of the Shares of the company in demat form is given below

S.No. Description Percentage
1 CDSL 1.76%
2 NSDL 30.65%
3 PHYSICAL 67.59%
4 TOTAL 100%

The shares of the company are listed on NSE/BSE which provides liquidity to the investors.

Plant Locations
The plants of the Company are located at :

1. SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED, PLOT NO. 21/6, FARIDABAD.

2. SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED, PLOT NO. 22/6, FARIDABAD.

3. SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED, PLOT NO. 128/24, FARIDABAD.

4. SPLINDUSTRIES LIMITED, 15/1, MATHURAD ROAD, FARIDABAD.

5. SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED, OPP. PLOT NO. 84/25, VILLAGE KHERA, FARIDABAD.
6. SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED, PLOT NO. 7/6, FARIDABAD.

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



Address for Correspondence

Registered Office:
5/66, 3rd Floor, K.C.House,

Padam Singh Road,
Karol Bagh,
New Delhi-110005

Corporate Office :
Plot No.21 , Sector-6

©

Faridabad (Haryana) 2

o

Declaration Q

As provided under clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Board Members and 5

the senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and Ethics for the 5

. o

period ended March 31, 2006. =

>

for SPL INDUSTRIES LTD E

New Delhi B.B.SHARMA

Dated : 04.08.2006 COMPANY SECRETARY 13

©)sPL Industries Ld.
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AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To The Members of SPL Industries Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by SPL Industries Limited as
at 31st March, 2006 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock
Exchange(s).

The Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to
state that as per the records maintained by the Company, no investor grievance is pending for a period
exceeding one month.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For MEHRA GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R.K.MEHRA
Place : New Delhi PARTNER
Dated: 31.07.2006



AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Shareholders’ of
SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of SPL INDUSTRIES LIMITED as on 31st March, 2006 and
also the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow statement of the Company for the year ended on that date
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2003, issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the Annexure, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) Inour opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far
as appears from our examination of those books;

c) The Balance Sheet, the Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
the report comply with the requirements of Accounting Standards referred to in sub section (3C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2006 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none of the Directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2006 from being appointed as a Director in terms of clause (g) of Sub-section (1) of
Section 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

f) In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
said accounts, give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India:

i) inthe case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st March, 2006;

i) inthe case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit of the company for the year ended on that
date; and

iii) inthe case of Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flow of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

FOR MEHRA GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants
R.K. MEHRA

PARTNER

M. No.: 6102

Place: New Delhi

Dated: July 31st, 2006
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€ SPL Industries Ltd.

ANNEXURE

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date)

)

i

Vi)

a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b) In our opinion the fixed assets covering significant value have been physically verified by the
Management during the year at reasonable intervals and having regard to the size of the company
and the nature of its assets and on the basis of the information and explanations given by the
Management, no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

c) No substantial part of fixed assets has been disposed off during the year.

a) As per information & explanation given to us, the inventory of the Company in its possession has
been physically verified by the Management at reasonable intervals. Stocks in the possession and
custody of the third parties and stocks in transit as on 31st March 2006 have been verified by the
Management with regard to confirmation or statement of account or correspondence of the third
parties or subsequent receipt of goods.

b) The procedure of physical verification of inventory of the Company followed by the Management is
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business.

c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. As explained to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such physical verification as compared to book records.

As per information & explanation given to us, the company has not taken any loan, secured or
unsecured, from companies, firms or other parties listed in the register maintained under section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

As per information & explanation given to us, the company has not granted any secured loan to
companies, firms or other parties listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956.In respect of unsecured loans granted by the company to companies, firms or other parties
listed in the Register maintained under Section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956

a) The company has further granted loans during the year to two parties aggregating to Rs. 7.70 lacs and
maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year and year end balance is Rs. 472 Lacs.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the rate of interest and
other conditions are not, prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of the company.

c) As per information and explanation given to us, the interest and principle of the loans granted by the
company are repayable on demand and there is no repayment schedule.

d) The loans given by the company are repayable on demand and therefore the question of overdue
amount does not arise.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are adequate internal

control procedures commensurate with the size of the company and the nature of its business for the

purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the course of our Audit, no major

weakness has been noticed in the internal controls.

In respect of transactions covered under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956:-

a) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made
in pursuance of contracts or arrangements, that needed to be entered in the register maintained u/s
301 of the Companies Act, 1956, have been so entered.

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made
in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register have been made at prices which
are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market prices at the relevant times.

vii) To the best of our knowledge, the company has not accepted any deposits covered under section 58A

and 58AA of the Companies Act, 1956.

viii) To the best of our knowledge and explanations given to us, the Company has an internal audit system

commensurate with its size and the nature of its business.

ix) To the best of our knowledge, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of any cost

X)

records under Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956, for the product manufactured by the
company.

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,



Investors Education and Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax,
Wealth Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess, service tax and any other statutory dues applicable to
it with the appropriate authorities.

b) According to information and explanations given to us there were no arrears of outstanding Income
Tax, Wealth Tax, Sale Tax, Service Tax, Cess, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and any other statutory dues
as at 31.03.2006 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to information and explanation given to us there are no
dues of sales tax / custom duty / wealth tax / excise duty / cess / service tax/ income tax which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute except in the following cases: -

Name of the Nature of the Amount (Rs.) Period to which | Forum where g
Statute Dues amount related | dispute is 8‘
pending S
1 2 3 4 5 5
[oX
Income Disallowance/ Rs. 275.89 Lacs | F/Y 2001-2002 | Commissioner) &
Tax Act, 1961 Recalculation (Appeals c_g
U/S 8018, £
80HHC, MAT <
Haryana Sale Additional Rs. 73.98 Lacs F/Y 2000-2001 | Tribunal 1 7
Tax Act & demand against Rs. 17.85 Lacs F/Y 2001-2002 | Tribunal
Central Sale Tax | sale of DEPB License

xi)  The Company has no brought forward losses and has not incurred any cash losses during the financial
year covered by our Audit and the immediate preceding financial year.

xii)  In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to Financial Institutions or Banks.

xiii) - On the basis of verification of accounts and records maintained by the Company and to the best of our
knowledge & belief, the Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by
way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

xiv) The Company is not a chit fund or nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore the provision of
clause 4(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the company.

xv) To the best of our knowledge and according to information given to us, the Company is not dealing or
trading in shares, securities and debentures.

xvi) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from Banks/ Financial Institutions.

xvii) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

xviii) According to the Cash Flow Statement and other records examined by us and information &
explanations given to us, on an overall basis, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not
been used during the year for long term investments.

xix) According to the information & explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment of shares during the year to parties and companies covered in the Register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

xx) According to the information & explanations given to us the Company has not issued any debenture
during the year.

xxi) The management has disclosed end use of money raised by public issue ( Refer note 12 of schedule
17) and the same is verified by us

xxii) Based upon the audit procedure performed and information and explanation given by the management
we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

FOR MEHRA GOEL & CO.

Chartered Accountants

R.K. MEHRA
PARTNER
M. No.: 6102

Place: New Delhi
Dated: July 31st, 2006

€ SPL Industries Ltd.
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Balance Sheet As At 31st March, 2006

SCHEDULE

No.
Sources of Funds
(1) SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND
(@) Share Capital 1
(b) Reserves & Surplus 2
(2) Loan Funds 3

Secured
(3) Deferred Tax Liability
Total

Application Of Funds
(1) Fixed/Intangible Assets 4
(a) Gross Block
(b) Less : Depreciation
(c) Net Block
(2) Capital Work In Progress 5
(3 Investment 6
(4) Current Assets,Loans And Advances
(@) Inventories
(b) Sundry Debtors
(c) Cash & Bank Balances 9
(d) Loans & Advances 10
Less :Current Liabilities And Provisions 11
(a) Current Liabilities
(b) Provisions
Net Current Assets
Total
Significant Accounting Policies 16
Notes To Accounts 17

Auditors’ Report
As Per Our Report Attached

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal
(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer)
M.No. 6102

B.B. Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Place : New Delhi
Date : July 31st, 2006

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
290,000,040 200,000,040
1,290,662,763 638,805,066
815,391,368 749,931,370
64,856,500 52,806,500
2,460,910,671 1,641,542,976

1,205,666,407 918,987,495
450,434,940 384,359,258
755,231,467 534,628,237

53,066,351 10,047,117
65,967,585 65,967,585

1,002,382,863 750,195,182
361,687,842 259,417,348
149,823,173 50,582,760
476,483,204 305,563,246

1,990,377,082

1,365,758,536

343,001,015 302,140,997
60,730,799 32,717,502
403,731,814 334,858,499

1,586,645,268

1,030,900,037

2,460,910,671

1,641,542,976

H.R. Gupta
(Chairman & Managing Director)

Vijay Jindal
(Joint Managing Director)



Profit & Loss Account For The Year Ended 31st March, 2006

Income
Sales of Product
less:- Excise Duty

Net Sales
Other Income

Expenditure

Manufacturing Administrative &
Other Expenses

Financial Charges
Depreciation

Profit Before Tax

Provision For Taxation
--Current Income Tax

--Deferred Income Tax

--Fringe benefit Tax

Income Tax Paid for Earlier Years
-- Wealth Tax

Profit After Tax

Add/(Less) :

Profit Brought Forward From Previous Year
Less: Bonus Share Issued

Balance Carried To Balance Sheet

Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share
(Refer Note No. 14)
Nominal Value of Equity Share

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes To Accounts

Auditors’ Report
As Per Our Report Attached

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

SCHEDULE
No.

12

13

14
15

16
17

R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal
(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer)
M.No. 6102

Place : New Delhi B.B. Sharma

Date : July 31st, 2006 (Company Secretary)

(Figures in Rupees)

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
2,607,305,956 1,752,770,912
58,700,053 52,839,427
2,548,605,903 1,699,931,485
14,991,031 11,314,307

2,563,596,934

1,711,245,792

2,213,622,367

1,419,161,629

82,093,129 71,910,870
76,795,997 67,997,520
2,372,511,494 1,5659,070,019
191,085,440 152,175,773
24,000,000 22,000,000
12,050,000 11,100,000
2,760,000 -
26,876 -
135,720 79,450
152,112,844 118,996,323
627,841,492 608,845,189
- 100,000,020
779,954,336 627,841,492
5.78 5.95
10 10

H.R. Gupta

Vijay Jindal

(Chairman & Managing Director)

(Joint Managing Director)
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Schedules Forming Part Of Balance Sheet

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
Schedule - 1 Share Capital
Authorised
30,000,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/ - Each 300,000,000 300,000,000
Issued Subscribed and Paid Up*
29,000,004 (Previous year 20,000,004)
Equity Shares Of Rs.10/-
Each Fully Paid Up 290,000,040 200,000,040
290,000,040 200,000,040
*Above includes 2 equity shares alloted as fully paid
up shares without payment being received in cash
on amalgamation of SPL Machines Ltd.
with the company and 10,000,002 issued as Bonus
share by Capitalization of accumulated balance in
Profit & Loss Account.
Schedule - 2 Reserves And Surplus
Capital Reserve
At The Commencement and end of The Year 107,174 107,174
Add:- capital subsidy during the year 3,000,000 -
3,107,174 107,174
Security Premium Account
Received During the Year 540,000,000 -
Less:- Public Issue Expenses 43,255,147 -
496,744,853 -
General Reserve
At The Commencement and end of The Year 10,856,400 10,856,400
Profit & Loss Account 779,954,336 627,841,492
1,290,662,763 638,805,066
Schedule - 3 Loan Funds
Secured
From Banks
---Term Loan* 32,925,383 43,929,383
---Other Term Loan** 5,963,107 2,070,903
---Working Capital Loan ***
In Foreign Currency 332,590,524 322,699,168
In Indian Currency 297,548,809 258,386,160
Term Loan From Financial Institution**** 143,000,000 117,000,000
Term Loan From Body Corporates***** 3,363,545 5,845,756
815,391,368 749,931,370

*Secured by first charge on Land & Building and Plant & Machinery acuired under the loan and first (exclusive) charge over factory land &
building located at Plot No. 7, Plot No. 22 and Plot No. 39, Sector 6, Faridabad and second paripassu charge on existing fixed assets of
the company located at Plot No. 7, 21,22, 39 in Sector 6, 15/1, Mathura Road and Plot No. 128, Sector 24, Faridabad. Further guarnteed
by personal guarntee of CMD and Jt. Managing Directors of the Company.

**Secured by hypothecation of specific vehicles.

***Rs. Nil ( previous Year Rs. 1031.88) secured by doucment of purchase demand promissary Note of Rs. Nil ( previous Year Rs. 1310
Lacs), specified ECGC Policy. Rs. 6301.39 Lacs (Previous Year 4778.97. Secured by first pari passu charge on current assets, first
(exclusive) Charge over factory land & building located at Plot No. 7, Plot No. 22 and Plot No. 39, Sector 6, Faridabad and second
paripassu charge on existing fixed assets of the company located at Plot No. 7,21,22,39 in, Sector 6, 15/1, Mathura Road and Plot
No. 128, Sector 24, Faridabad. All the loans are further guaranteed by personal guarantee of CMD and Jt. Managing Directors of the
Company.

****Secured by first mortgage and charge on all the company’s immovable and movable assets, both present and future, (save and except
book debts), subject to the charge created / to be created in favour of the company’s bankers on current assets for securing borrowings
for working capital requirements and charges created for specific equipments in favour of banks/IDBI, ranking paripassu with the charges
created and /or to be created in favour of existing term lenders. The loan is further secured by personalguarantee of CMD and Jt.Managing
Directors of the Company. Rs. 430/- Lacs( Previous Year Rs.610 Lacs) is further secured by deposit of lease deeds in respect of properties
situated at 15/1, Mathura Road, Faridabad.

*****Secured by first exlusive charge on Plant & Machinery acquired under the loan. The loan is further secured by Personal Guarantee of
CMD & Jt. Managing Director.
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SCHEDULE - 4 FIXED/INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

ASSETS AS AT ADDITIONS SALE/ AS AT UPTO FOR THE | Written Back Up TO AS AT AS AT

01.04.05 TRANSFER 31.03.06 01.04.05 YEAR On Sale 31.03.06 31.03.06 31.03.05
LAND 83,156,287 0 - 83,156,287 - - - -| 83,156,287| 83,156,287
BUILDING * 110,266,383 31,615,836 - 141,882,219 | 20,663,263 3,841,336 - | 24,504,599 | 117,377,620 89,603,120
PLANT & MACHINERY 681,674,291 257,088,866 | 18,407,815 920,355,342 | 340,920,615 | 65,183,294 9,507,792 | 396,596,117 | 523,759,225 340,753,676
VEHICLES 17,641,784 7,451,638 2,754,691 22,338,731 7,110,837 1,862,662 1,212,523 7,760,976 | 14,577,755 10,530,947
FURNITURE & FIXTURE 8,697,476 5,334,836 - 14,032,312 4,567,993 598,151 - 5,166,144 8,866,168| 4,129,483
OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 12,944,599 2,728,319 - 15,672,918 6,801,507 1,673,899 - 8,475,406 7,197,512 6,143,092
ASSETS BELOW 5000 3,671,775 3,176,573 - 6,848,348 3,671,775 3,176,573 - 6,848,348 - -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COMPUTER SOFTWARE 934,900 445,350 - 1,380,250 623,268 460,083 - 1,083,351 296,899 311,632
TOTAL 918,987,495 | 307,841,418 | 21,162,506 |1,205,666,407 | 384,359,258 | 76,795,997 10,720,315 450,434,940 (755,231,467|534,628,237
PREVIOUS YEAR 877,320,297 63,064,328 | 21,397,130 918,987,495 | 327,047,215 | 67,997,520 10,685,477 | 384,359,258 | 534,628,237

* Cost of Building and accumulated depreciation includes Rs. 15.54 Lacs (previous Year Rs. 15.54 Lacs) on account of leasehold inprovements, depreciation on the same has been

amortised over the original period of lease.
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Schedule - 5 Capital Work In Progress
Building

Plant & Machinery

Advance For Capital Goods

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Schedule - 6 Investment

(Long Term - Other Than Trade )
Unquoted, Fully Paid up

Elkay International P. Ltd.

-6,66,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each
Elkay Strips Ltd.

-95,750 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- Each
Sadhu Forging Ltd.

-27,500 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- Each
Investment In Subsidiary Company
Unquoted, Fully Paid up

Mode Prints Ltd.

- 13,01,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- Each

Schedule - 7 Inventory

(As Taken, Valued And Certified By The Management)
Raw Material

Stores & Spares

Fuel & Furnace Oil

Work in Progress

Packing Material

Finished Goods

Goods in Transit

Scrap

Schedule - 8 Sundry Debtors

(Unsecured)

Debts Outstanding Over Six Months
--Considered Good

--Considered Doubtful

--Less Provision for Doubtful Debts
Others*

Schedules Forming Part Of Balance Sheet

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
22,534,706 9,641,067
66,464 406,050
30,465,181 -
53,066,351 10,047,117
6,665,000 6,665,000
9,575,000 9,575,000
27,500,000 27,500,000
22,227,585 22,227,585
65,967,585 65,967,585
228,201,001 151,616,094
5,557,257 2,117,050
891,467 847,180
585,201,504 464,208,924
3,840,145 1,339,770
178,254,349 130,022,691
396,565 43,473
40,575 -
1,002,382,863 750,195,182
93,927,329 76,014,944
10,462,414 1,300,998
(10,462,414) (1,300,998)
267,760,513 183,402,404
361,687,842 259,417,348

* Includes Rs.18222994/- (Previous Year Rs.29894618/-) Due from SPL Overseas a firm in which a director is partner.



Schedules Forming Part Of Balance Sheet

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
Schedule - 9 Cash and Bank Balances
Cash in Hand 1,171,512 1,575,738
Balance With Scheduled Banks
--in Current Accounts 9,005,802 7,247,577
--in Fixed Deposit Accounts * 139,645,759 41,759,345 8
Balance With Post Office Y
--Saving Account** 100 100 @
149,823,173 50,582,760 s
*Including Interest Accrued Thereon Rs.131529/- T
(Previous Year Rs. 309985/-). ‘_é’
**Maximum Balance During the year Rs.100/- g
(Previous Year Rs. 100/-). 23
Schedule - 10 Loans And Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)
Advances Recoverable in Cash Or in Kind or
for Value To be Received 222,620,822 153,281,854
Loan & Advances 48,773,850 44,544,484
Security Deposit 8,828,052 2,616,552
Export Benefit Receivable 115,197,492 74,521,745
Advance To Subsidiary Company 685,181 1,052,561
Balance With Excise Department 13,365 17,251
Centvat Receivable 9,671,144 14,436,888
Advance Wealth / Income Tax 70,693,298 15,191,911
476,483,204 305,563,246
Schedule - 11 Current Liabilities And Provisions
Current Liabilities
Sundry Creditors 292,322,769 267,526,178
Book Overdraft 3,000,466 -
Interest Accrued but not Due on Loans - 6,387
Other Liabilities 47,677,780 34,608,432
A 343,001,015 302,140,997
Provisions
Retirement Benefits 5,745,629 4,438,352
Provision for Wealth / Income Tax 54,985,170 28,279,150
B 60,730,799 32,717,502
A+B 403,731,814 334,858,499

©)sPL Industries Ld.
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Schedule - 12 Sales

Sales including Excise Duty
--Export

--Domestic

Processing Charges

Export Incentives

Exchange Fluctuation (Net)

Schedule - 13 Other Income
Interest*

Profit on Sale of fixed Assets
Other Income

*Tax Deducted at Source Rs.1386925/-
(Previous Year Rs. 10,93,874/-).

Schedules Forming Part Of Profit & Loss Account

(Figures in Rupees)

Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
2,379,679,237 1,462,924,792
32,008,735 48,638,934
93,180,949 117,166,980
105,164,259 119,507,319
(2,727,224) 4,532,887
2,607,305,956 1,752,770,912
10,551,700 5,231,342
45,073 2,817,559
4,394,258 3,265,406
14,991,031 11,314,307




Schedules Forming Part Of Profit & Loss Account

Schedule - 14 Manufacturing, Administrative

And Other Expenses
Raw Material Consumed
Store Consumed

Salary & Wages

Welfare Expenses

Contribution To PF. and Other Funds

Power & Fuel
Job Work Charges

Provision of Excise Duty on Closing Stock (Net)

Repair & Mainteance

--Plant & Machinery

--Building

--Others

Advertisement & Publicity
Travelling & Conveyance
Printing & Stationery

Postage Telegram and Telephone
Insurance

Auditors Remuneuration
--Audit Fees

--Tax Audit Fees

--Other Services

Legal & Professional Charges
Rent

Rates & Taxes

Quota Expenses

Vehicle Running & Maintenance
Sales Promotion

Selling Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenditure
Loss On Sale Of Fixed Assets (Net)
Provision for doubtfull debts
Bad Debts Written Off

Add/(Less) : Decrease/(Increase) in Stock

Opening Stock
--Finished Goods
--Work In Progress
--Scrap

Closing Stock
--Finished Goods
--Work In Progress
--Scrap

Schedule - 15 Financial Charges
Interest

--Term Loans

--Others

Bank & Financial Charges

(Figures in Rupees)

Year Ended Year Ended

31.03.2006 31.03.2005

1,423,657,236 971,895,249

19,459,197 17,408,324

186,843,092 156,993,420

5,352,431 4,471,710

21,698,827 15,696,004

133,450,388 97,630,081

263,656,473 203,950,243

(1,026,116) (334,748)

20,270,989 15,341,040

2,803,487 1,869,470

3,778,052 2,224,966

150,762 70,617

15,589,945 12,753,922

6,000,574 4,256,021

13,464,603 10,777,690

4,977,217 4,579,865

785,680 700,000

112,240 100,000

81,600 106,100

1,857,086 2,005,143

1,408,344 1,252,650

4,249,581 4,036,435

- 43,239,948

2,834,664 2,372,353

5,090,211 3,460,306

184,924,153 110,633,568

46,206,413 51,125,437

4,897,565 3,653,289

9161416 -

1,151,070 -

A 2,382,887,180 1,742,269,103
130,022,691 39,546,886

464,208,924 231,556,645

- 20,610

B 594,231,615 271,124,141
178,254,349 130,022,691

585,201,504 464,208,924

40,575 -

C 763,496,428 594,231,615
D (B-C) (169,264,813) (323,107,474)
A+D 2,213,622,367 1,419,161,629
14,043,573 11,722,689

49,238,745 37,266,470

18,810,811 22,921,711

82,093,129 71,910,870
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SCHEDULE- 16. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable accounting standards issued by the institute
of Charatered Accountants of India and the provision of Companies Act, 1956.

2. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of Modvat/cenvat/VAT wherever availed, less accumulated depreciation.
Cost of fixed assets comprises purchase price, duties, levies, borrowing cost, exchange fluctuations and
any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets and the cost of assets not ready to put to use before
the year end, are disclosed under capital work in progress.

3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with the Accounting Standards (AS) 26 relating to intangible assets, all costs incurred on
technical know-how / license fee relating to production process are charges to revenue in the year of in-
currence. Costs incurred on technical know-how / license fee relating to process design / plants / facilities
are capitalized at the time of capitalization of the said plant / facility and amortized on pro-rata basis over
a period of five years. Computer software is capitalized on the date of installation and is amotised over a
period of three years

4. IMPARIMENT OF ASSETS

Carrying amount of cash generating units / assets is reviewed for impairment. Impairment, if any, is recog-
nized where the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount being the higher of net realizable price
and value in use.

5. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation on all plant and machinery, building at Sarai(Faridabd )is provided on the Written Down value
method at the rate and in the manner prescribed in schedule XIV to the Companies Act 1956.
Depreciation on other fixed assets is provided on straight Line Method at the rate and in the manner pre-
scribed in schedule XIV to the Companies Act 1956.

Depreciation is charged on pro-data basis for assets purchased / sold during the  year. Individual assets
costing Rs. 5000/- or less are depreciated in full, in the year of purchase. Depreciation on incremental cost
arising on account of translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of fixed assets is provided as
aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assets.

6. INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Current investments are stated at lower
of cost or market value. Long-term investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution in value is
made only if such decline is other than temporary in the opinion of management.

7. INVENTORY VALUATION

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net realisable
value. The cost is determined by using First In First Out (FIFO) method. Finished goods & work in progress
includes costs of conversion & other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location &
condition.

Excise duty on closing stock of manufactured goods, wherever applicable, is accounted for on the basis
of payment made in respect of goods cleared as also provision made for goods lying in the factory and
included in the value of such stocks.

8. SALES
Sales are inclusive of excise duty and net of sales tax, whenever applicable.

9. PROCESSING CHARGES
Processing charges are net of returns, trade discount and rebates.

10. PURCHASE OF RAW MATERIALS:

Cost of Purchase less modvat/cenvat credits, wherever availed, constitutes purchase price and includes
duties, freight inward and other cost directly attributable to such purchase in the year in which they are ac-
counted, whether the expenditure is immediate or deferred.



11. BORROWING COST:

Borrowing Cost that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized as
part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get
ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

12. DIVIDEND INCOME:
Dividend on investments is accounted for as and when the right to receive the same is established.

13. CLAIMS:
Claim receivables are accounted for depending on the certainty of receipt & Claims payable are accounted
for at the time of acceptance.

14. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing at
the time of transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-end
are translated at exchange rate applicable as of that date. Non-Monetary items denominated in foreign
currency are valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Any income or expense on
account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the profit and loss
account except in cases where these relate to the acquisition of fixed assets.

Exchange differences arising on liabilities incurred or on repayment of borrowings in foreign currency for
acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying cost except borrowing utilized for acquisition of as-
sets within India on or after 1st April 2004 in which case these are recognized in the profit & loss A/c

15. INCOME TAX

Provision for current income tax is made after taking credit for allowances and exemptions. In case of mat-
ters under appeal, due to disallowance or otherwise, provision is made when the company accepts the
said liabilities.

In accordance with the Accounting standard 22-Accounting for Taxes on income, issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, the deferred tax for timing differences between the book & tax profit is
accounted for using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as of
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary timing difference are recognized to the extent there is virtual
certainty that the assets can be realized in future.

16. RETIREMENT BENIFITS

Contribution to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund and family pension funds are charged
to revenue. For gratuity, the company has opted the scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of
India (LIC). Amount paid / payable to the LIC towards gratuity liability is charged to revenue. For the employ-
ees not covered by the said scheme, the gratuity liability is provided for in the accounts on the basis of last
salary drawn. Provision for earned leave is made for the value of unutilized leave due to employee as at the
end of the year on the basis of last salary drawn, in the absence of actuarial valuation.

17. MODVAT/CENVAT/VAT

Modvat/cenvat/VAT claimed on capital assets is credited to assets/capital work in progress account. Mod-
vat/cenvat on purchase of raw materials and other materials are deducted from the cost of such materi-
als.

18. PROPOSED DIVIDEND
No dividend has been proposed to declare by the Board.

19. PROVISION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Show cause notices issued by various government authorities are not considered as obligation. When the
demand notice are raised against such show cause notice and are disputed by the company then these
are classified as possible obligations.

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a pres-
ent obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contin-
gent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in notes.

20. PUBLIC ISSUE EXPENSE
Public issue expenses have been deducted from security premium account.
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SCHEDULE- 17 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As At 31.03.2006  As At 31.03.2005

(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
(@) Bank Guarantee for A.E.RPC. and Custom Duty 46.09 145.87
(b) Bills Discounted 2423.96 1146.27
(c) Outstanding Letter of Credit (Net of Margin of
Rs. 131.21 Lacs (PY. 414.73 Lacs)) 895.94 1542.05
(d) Disputed Liability towards Provident
Fund and E.S.I (Net of paid under protest) 21.41 431.14
(e) Disputed Liability towards Sales Tax
(Net of paid under protest) 71.82 91.82
(f) Estimated amount of Contract
remaining to be executed (Net of Advance) 309.23 39.30
(9) Surety given to Sales Tax Department for third party 1.00 1.00
2. In case of default in repayment of principal amount of the term loans taken from IDBI or interest thereon
8 IDBI has a right to convert at par at its option 100% of the defaulted amount into fully paid up equity
8 shares of the company. The balance of aforesaid loans as at 31.03.2006 is Rs.1430.00 Lacs. (As at
Q& 31.03.2005 Rs. 1170.00 Lacs)
§ 3. Directors Remuneration Current Year Previous Year
o (Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs)
[
§ Salary 30.00 10.25
< HRA - 0.34
2 Perquisites -- 0.40
30.00 10.99
Director's Sitting Fees 0.18 -

Note: Above does not includes payment made to gratuity fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation
of India and provision made for leave encashment as the contribution provision made for the directors is
not separately identifiable.

4. Computation of Net Profit in accordance with section 198/349 of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been
given as no commission is payable to Managing/Whole Time Directors.

5. The Company has invested Rs. 95.75 Lacs in the equity share capital of Elkay Strips Ltd., which
has incurred losses as a result of which the net worth of aforesaid company has been depleted. As
investment is held as long term investment and considering the assets base of investee company, the
management is of the opinion that the diminution in value of equity shares is of temporary in nature and
accordingly no provision is considered necessary for the same.

6. Interest income includes Rs. 35,18,057/-(Previous Year Rs.42,90,695/-) on loans to body corporates,
Rs. 66,19,454/- (Previous Year Rs.9,15,942/-) on fixed deposit with bank.

7. Exchange fluctuation (net) includes Rs. (53.11) Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 83.69), which is arisen on
cancellation of forward exchange contracts.

8. Misc. Expenses includes Rs. 54.30 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 205.16 Lacs gain) for running and
maintenance of a foreign office.

9. Sundry creditors includes Rs. 471088.73 (Previous year-Rs.129020/-) due to small scale and ancillary
undertakings to the extent such parties have been identified from available information, which have
been relied upon by the auditors. The Company has normally made payments to SSI units in due time
and also being no claim from the parties, interest, if any, on overdue payment is unascertainable and
thus not provided for. The names of SSI units to whom company owes any sum, which is outstanding
for more than 30 days as at the balance sheet date, are ASB Industries pvt. Ltd., Jain labels Pvt. Ltd.,
Asthatec Services P, Ltd. and K.C. Enterprises.

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



10. Segment Information:

a) Primary Segment Reporting by Business Segment:

Primary business segment of the company is sale of cotton garments and made ups i.e. T-Shirts,
Cotton Sweater, Bed Sheets etc, which in the context of Accounting Standard 17 on “Segment
Reporting” issued by ICAl is considered the only business segment.

b) Secondary Segment Reporting (By Geographical Segments):

The Following is the distribution of the company’s consolidated sales by geographical segment,
regardless of where the goods were produced:

Current Year Previous Year

(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
(i) Sales to Overseas Market 23796.79 14629.25
(i) Sales to Domestic Market 320.09 486.39

The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for overseas markets and domestic markets.
Hence, separate figures for fixed assets/additions to fixed assets etc. cannot be furnished.
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11. Related Party Information:

(

N
O

) Relationships:

(@) Subsidiary Companies: (b) Associates:
(i) Mode Prints Ltd. (i)  Elkay Strips Ltd.
(c) Key Management Personnel (KMP): (d) Relatives of Key management personnel):
(i) H.R.Gupta (i) Punita Jindal
(i) Vijay Jindal (i) Nikita Garg
(iii) Praveen Garg (i) Avni Jindal
(iv) Pankaj Garg (iv)  Richa Jindal
(v) Mukesh Aggarwal (v)  Ram Billas Aggarwal
(vi)  Kiran Aggarwal
(vii)  Suditi Garg

e) Enterprises over which key management personnel (KMP) or relative having significant influence:
() Sadhu Forging Ltd.

(i) Elkay Telelinks Ltd.

(iii) SPL Overseas

(iv) Elkay International Ltd.

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors.

©)sPL Industries Ld.



(ii) Transactions Carried out with related parties referred in (i) above, in ordinary course of

business:
Rs. In Lacs
PARTICULARS Subsidiary Associates Key Management | Relatives of key | Enterprises over | Grand total
Companies Personnel Management which KMP &
Personnel their relatives have
significant
influence
Current [Previous. | Current [Previous. | Current | Previous. | Current | Previous. |Current | Previous | Current | Previous
Year Year| Year Year| Year Year| Year Year | Year Year| Year Year
Rent Paid 6.00 6.00| 5.94 5.09 - - - -| 064 -1 1258 11.09
Payment made by
Company on behalf
of them 0.96 2.34 - 1181 - - - - -| 173.46| 096 | 187.61
Payment received
by Company on
behalf of them - - - - - - - - - 2.20 - 2.20
Remuneration - - - -| 30.00( 10.99| 882 8.52 - -| 38.82| 19.51
8 Interest Received - -| 30.98| 30.19 - - - -| 420 11.63| 3518| 41.82
@ Inerest Paid - B E— N - T T t0s8|  -| 1036
§ Loan & advance Given| - -1 420 7.50 - - - -| 350 136.93| 7.70| 144.43
g Loan Taken - - - - - 1 - | 23400 - 23400
?_:“ Security received back - - - - - - - - - - - -
g Sale/Jobwork - - - - - - - -| 893 210.74| 8.93| 210.74
< Sale of Tnvestment - - - - - 1108 201 - - - 3719
3 Purchase/Job work - - - 0.72 - - - -| 36.29 | 4461 36.29| 4533
Purchase of
Fixed Assets - - - - - - - -1198.58 -1198.58 -
Outstanding
Receivable - - - - - - - [182.23 | 298.95(182.23 | 298.95
Payable - - - - - 0.51 0.65 | 15.08 -| 1559 0.65
Loan & Advances
Given 6.85 | 10.53|412.77 | 392.97 - - - - | 59.23 | 52.25|478.85| 460.97
Loan Taken (Including
Interest Payable) - - - - - - - - - - -

12. i) The Company has issued and allotted 90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- at a premium of rs. 60/-
per share. Consequently:

a) Share Capital increased by Rs. 900 Lacs
b) Security premium Account Rs. 5400 Lacs
(i) Share issue expenses Rs. 433 Lacs has been deducted from security premium account.

(iii) Out of Rs. 6300 Lacs raised through IPO Rs. 4296 Lacs have been utilized for meeting capital
expenditure and share issue expenses as per the object of IPO.

(iv) As per the object of IPO the company has to invest RS. 517 Lacs towards setting of Yarn Dyeing
Plant but management has formed an opinion that this Investment is not remunerative and decided
to diversify for the expansion of existing capacity of knitted Dyed Fabric and Knitted Garments
instead of yarn Dyeing plant. Balance funds are temporarily invested with Banks as FDRs.

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



13. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax liability at the year end
comprise of the followings:

AS at 31.03.2006

(1) Deferred liability on account of:
Timing difference between book &

(Rs. In Lacs)

AS at 31.03.2005

tax depreciation 723.89 553.94
- 723.89 553.94
(2) Deferred Assets on account of:
Disallowance under section 43B 41.17 17.35
Provision for Doubtful Debts 30.84 00.00
Others 02.02 08.52
75.33 25.87
Net Deferred Tax Liability 648.56 528.07
14. Calculation of Earning Per Share
a) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares
Number of equity share at the commencement
of the year(Nos.) 2,00,00,004 1,00,00,002
Add: Bouns share issued during the year (Nos.) 1,00,00,002
Add: Public Issue during the year (90,00,000
Shares) (90,00,000 X 257 / 365) 63,36,986
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
used as denomination (Nos.) 2,63,36,986 2,00,00,004
b) Net profit available for Equity Share holders 15,21,12,844 11,89,96,323
¢) Basic & Diluted earning per share (b/a) (Rs.) 5.78 5.95

15. Personal accounts are subject to confirmation of respective parties.

16. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary.
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18 Additional information under part-1l of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 . (As

Certified by the management).

(a) Licensed Capacity N.A
(b) Installed Capacity Current Period
(As certified by the management)
Knitted Fabric 7000 MT
Processing and Dyeing of Fabric 8000 MT
Garments 132 Lakh Pcs
(c) Particulars of production
Dyed Knitted Fabric* 5247.645 MT
Processing and Dyeing 1133.077 MT
Garments 11770222 Pcs

* Includes 339.032 MT (Previous Year 141.192 MT) Fabric purchased.

(d) Particulars of Finished Goods
Current Period

I Opening Stock Qty Value (Rs.)
Dyed Knitted Fabric 272.334 MT 114207742
Processing and Dyeing 10.694 MT 754134
Garments 52745 Pcs 15048272
Others 12543

130022691

I Closing Stock
Dyed Knitted Fabric 398.287 MT 169317178
Processing and Dyeing 15.408 MT 1,011,714
Garments 11965 Pcs 3296105
Others 4629352

178254349

(e) Particulars of Turnover
Dyed Knitted Fabric 5121.692 MT* 19403565
Processing and Dyeing 1128.363 MT 93180949
Garments 11811002 Pcs** 2310009034
Other 82,275,373

2504868921

54.494
3.681
71637

272.334
10.694
52745

3174.873
1758.318
6167851

N.A
Previous year

4600 MT
5000 MT
97 Lakh Pcs

3392.712 MT
1765.331 MT
6148959 Pcs

Previous Year
Qty  Value (Rs.)

MT 19036133
MT 172623
Pcs 20338130
39546886

MT 114207742
MT 754,134
Pcs 15048272
12,543

130022691

MT* 17816583
MT 117166980
Pcs** 1468444917
25,302,226
1628730706

* Includes 4976.618 MT ( Previous Year 3056.599MT) for Captive consumption for Garments & Nil

MT (Previous Year 17.270) for Home Furnishing.
** Includes Sample Sale 3965 Pcs. (Previous Year 3672 Pcs.) .

(f) Raw Material Consumed
Current Period

Colour and Chemical 6123.150 MT 181526001
Yarn 5263.718 MT 904180082
Fabric Knitted 619.602 MT 183559092

*  Others 154392061
11423657236

* Includes accessories sold Rs. Nil ( previous year Rs. 223360/-)

5368.425
3453.490
195.695

Previous Year

MT 183560001
MT 607360786
MT 42378266
138596196
971895249



(g) Value of Imported /indgenous Raw material and Stores Consumed

Percentage Value (Rs.) Percentage Value (Rs.)
Raw Material
Imported 12.59 179303570 18.23 77221849
Indigenous 87.41 1244353666 81.77 794673400
100 1423657236 100 971895249
Stores and Spares
Imported 47.98 9336837 23.35 4064241
Indigenous 52.02 10122360 76.65 13344083
100 19459197 100 17408324 §
(h) CIF Value Of Import 8
Current Period Previous Year %
Value (Rs) Value (Rs) &
Raw material 165,971,323 149,767,466 =
Capital Goods 164,288,585 18,597,522 é’
Stores and spares 767,745 3,464,142 <
321,027,653 171,829,130 33
(i) Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Current Period Previous Year
Value (Rs) Value (Rs)
Travelling 2,866,721 1,744,909
Others 22,637,234 35,483,643
25,503,955 37,228,552

(i) Earnings in Foreign Currencies
FOB Value of Exports 2,240,304,702 13,990,584,668

Auditors’ Report

As per our report attached

FOR MEHRA GOEL & CO.
Chartered Accountants

R.K. MEHRA Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta
(Partner ) (Chief Finanacial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
M.No. 6102
B.B. Sharma Vijay Jindal
PLACE : NEW DELHI (Company Secretary) (Joint Managing Director)

DATE : July 31st, 2006

©)sPL Industries Ld.



CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE BALANCE SHEET
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2006

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2006 31.03.2005

(Rs.InLacs) (Rs. InLacs)

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES

Net Profit after Tax and before/prior period/extra ordinary items 1,621.13 1,189.96
Adjustment for :
Depreciation/Amortisation 767.96 679.98
Expenses amortised - -
Provision for retirement benefit 13.07 8.87
Interest and financial charges 820.93 719.11
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 48.52 8.36
Provision for tax/Tax for Earlier years 389.73 331.79
Bad Debts/provision for doubtful debts 103.12 -
Interest Income on Loan to Body Corporates (85.18) (43.16)
Exchange Fluctuation 32.96 (25.10)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Change 3,662.24 2,869.81
Adjustment for :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable (2,270.69) (1,401.71)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2,521.87) (3,932.40)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 408.66 1,063.72
© Cash Generated from operations (721.66) (1,400.58)
2 Direct Taxes Paid (557.18) (39.59)
8 Cash Flow before prior period & Extraordinary items (1,278.84) (1,440.17)
o Prior Period Iltems - -
‘g_ Net Cash (Used in) From Operating Activites (1,278.84) (1,440.17)
& B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
© Purchase of Fixed Assets(Including capital work in progress)
2 & Intangible Assets (3,508.61) (361.68)
g Sale/Damage of Fixed Assets 55.90 98.76
Interest Income on Loan to Body Corporates 35.18 43.16
3 Sale of Investment - 156.50
(Increase)/Decrease in Loan to Body Corporates (42.29) 379.39
Net Cash (Used in) /from investing activities (3,459.82) 316.13
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Share Capital Including Share Premium 5,867.45 -
Capital Subsidy Received 30.00
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (401.88) (369.72)
Proceed from Long Term Borrowings 565.94 588.73
Short-term borrowing (Net) 477.69 1,943.10
Interest Paid (821.00) (722.36)
Exchange Fluctuation 12.86 11.09
Share Issue Expenses -
Net Cash (Used in)/from Financing Activities 5,731.06 1,450.84
Net increase(decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 992.40 326.80
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the Year 505.83 179.03
Add: Cash and cash equivalents received on amalagamation - -
505.83 179.03
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Period/Year 1,498.23 505.83

NOTES
1. Cash flow statement has been prepared following the “indirect method” as set out in the Accounting
Standerd -3 on Cash flow statement issued by the ICAI.

Auditors’ Report
As Per Our Report Attached

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta

(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
M.No. 6102

Place : New Delhi B.B. Sharma Vijay Jindal

Date : July, 31st, 2006 (Company Secretary) (Joint Managing Director)

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



Balance Sheet Abstract & Company’s General Business Profile
| Registration Details

RegistrationNo.  [6]2][7]4] 4] State Code

Balance SheetDate [ 3] 1] [0] 3] [ 2] o] o] 6

Il Capital Raised During The Period (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue Rights Isuue
[ 9[of o] o] 0] INJT[L]
Bonus Issue Private Placement
IN[ L] INJT L] ©
Il Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amounts in Rs. Thousands) g
Total Liabilities Total Assets ]
Al
(2]a]6]ofof[1]1] 2Jafeofo[1]1] €
Sources Of Funds &
Paid Up Capital Reserve & Surplus Deffered Tax Liability CC_E“
[2]9]ofofof0] [1l2]ofofe[6]3] l6]4]8[5]7] 2
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans <
lel1]s[3[a]1] IN T [L]
Application of Funds 35
Net Fixed Assets (Including C. WIP) Investments
(8lofsf2[9]8] 6[5[9]6]8]
Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
Lilslslele4]5] INJ1 L]
IV Performance Of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turn Over Total Expenditure
(2]5]6[3[5][9]7] (2[3[7]2]s5]1]2]
Profit/Loss Before Tax Profit/Loss After Tax
Lel-T1lol 1] o] 8] 5] el-T1lsl2]q]1]3]
(Please tick appropriate box + for profit,-for loss)
Earning Per Share(Rs.) Basic/Diluted Dividend Rate %
ofs[ . [7]8] INJT[L]

V  Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company
(As Per Monetary Terms)
ltem Code No.[6 [1 [0 ]9 [To[6[1[1]1]
(ITC Code No.)
Product Description [T [-]S[H] I[R]T[S]

(HIOIM E[FIU[RIN[ 1] S[H] I1[N]G]
BIA[B[ITE[S] [GIA[RIM[E[N][T[S] [O]F]

ClO[T[T[O]N]

ltem Code No. 6] 0]o]2]
(ITC Code No.)

Product Description [K[N[ I[T[T]E[D] [FIAIBIR[I]C] [O]F]

(clo[T[T[O[N]
Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta
(Chief Financial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
Place : New Delhi B.B.Sharma Vijay Jindal
Dated: July 31st, 2006 (Company secretary) (Joint Managing Director)

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

1. Name of the Subsidiary Company Mode Prints Ltd
2. Financial Year of the Subsidiary ended on 31st March, 2006
Number of shares held by M/s SPL Industries Ltd.in the
subsidiary company at the end of the financial
year of the subsidiary Company.

4. Extent of Interest of Holding Company at the end 100 %
of the financial year of the subsidiary Company
5. The net aggregate amount of the subsidiary Company’s 100 %

profit/(Loss) so far as it concerns the members of

M/s. SPL Industries Ltd.-the Holding Company.

(a) Dealt within the accounts of Holding Company,
amounted to (in Rs.)

(i) For the Subsidiary’s financial year ended 31.03.2006 2,87,587.00
(i) For the Previous financial year of the subsidiary company 1,54,464.55
8 Since it became subsidiary of M/s. SPL Industries Ltd.
g‘ (b) Not dealt within the accounts of subsidiary Holding company amounted to (in Rs.)
g (i) For the subsidiary’s financial year ended 31.03.2006 NIL
qé)_ (i) For the Previous year of the subsidiary company NIL
T Since it became subsidiary of M/s. SPL Industries Ltd
S
c
= By Order of the Board
For and on behalf of the Board
3 For SPL Industries Ltd.
Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta
(Chief Financial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
Place: New Delhi B.B. Sharma Vijay Jindal
Date: July 31st, 2006 (Company Secretary) (Joint Managing Director)

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



AUDITORS REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

To the Board of Directors of SPL Industries Ltd.

We have examined the attached consolidated Balance Sheet of SPL Industries Limited and its subsidiary
as at 31st March 2006 and the Consolidated profit & Loss Account for the year ended annexed thereto and
the Consolidated Cash Flow statement for the year ended on the date.

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards in India. These Standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with an identified financial reporting framework and are free of material misstatements. An
audit includes, examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by the management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries, whose fiannacial statements reflect total assets
of Rs. 268.06 lacs as at 31st March, 2008, total revenue of Rs.6.78 lacs and net cash flow amounting to
Rs.0.82 lacs and financial statement of the associate in which the share of loss of the company is Rs. 20.99
lacs has not been audited by us. These Financial statements have been audited by the other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in
respect of the subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21, Consolidated Financial Statements, issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of the separate audited financial statements of
the Company and its Subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements.

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us and on the consideration of separate audit
reports on individual audited statements of the Company and its subsidiary, we are of the opinion that:

(@) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company and
its subsidiary as at 31st March 2006;

(b) in the case of Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Consolidated profits of the Company and
its subsidiaries for the year then ended; and

(c) in the case of Consolidated Cash Flow statement, of the consolidated Cash Flow of the Company and
its subsidiary for the year then ended.

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R.K. Mehra
Place: New Delhi Partner
Dated: 31st July, 2006 M.No:6102
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Consolidated Balance Sheet As At 31st March, 2006

(Figures in Rupees)

SCHEDULE AS AT AS AT
No. 31.03.2006 31.03.2005
I  Sources of Funds
(1) SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND

(@ Share Capital 1 290,000,040 200,000,040
(b) Reserves & Surplus 2 1,289,823,746 640,148,862
(2) Minority Interest 1,119 1,123

(3) Loan Funds 3
Secured 815,391,368 749,931,370
(4) Deferred Tax Liability 64,893,121 52,843,121
Total 2,460,109,394 1,642,924,516

Application Of Funds
(1) Fixed/Intangible Assets 4

Net Current Assets

1,587,181,250

Q (a) Gross Block 1,233,468,850 946,789,937
g' (b) Less : Depreciation 457,941,809 391,399,628
& (c) Net Block 775,527,040 555,390,309
§ (2) Capital Work In Progress 5 53,066,351 10,047,117
& (3) Investment 6 35,117,168 37,216,219
ke (4) Goodwill On Consolidation 9,217,585 9,217,585
E (5) Current Assets,Loans And Advances

(@) Inventories 1,002,382,863 750,195,182
3 (b) Sundry Debtors 361,687,842 259,417,348
(c) Cash & Bank Balances 9 149,906,026 50,751,501
(d) Loans & Advances 10 477,276,275 305,913,774
1,991,253,006 1,366,277,805

Less :Current Liabilities And Provisions 11
(@) Current Liabilities 343,012,215 302,157,017
(b) Provisions 61,059,541 33,067,502
404,071,756 335,224,519

1,031,053,286

Total 2,460,109,394 1,642,924,516
Significant Accounting Policies 16
Notes To Accounts 17

Auditors’ Report
As Per Our Report Attached

For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants

R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta
(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
M.No. 6102

B.B. Sharma
(Company Secretary)

Place : New Delhi
Date : July 31st, 2006

Vijay Jindal
(Joint Managing Director)

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



Consolidated Profit & Loss Account For The Year Ended

31st March, 2006

(Figures in Rupees)

SCHEDULE Year Ended Year Ended
No. 31.03.2006 31.03.2005
Income
Sales of Product 12 2,607,305,956 1,752,770,912
less:- Excise Duty 58,700,053 52,839,427
Net Sales 2,548,605,903 1,699,931,485
Other Income 15,069,241 11,385,006 ©
2,663,675,144 1,711,316,491 8‘
Expenditure IS
Manufacturing Administrative & 5
Other Expenses 13 2,213,216,771 1,418,906,206 153
Financial Charges 14 82,094,203 71,911,126 -
Depreciation 77,262,496 68,512,360 3
Less Revaluation Reserve 367,639 443,454 g
76,894,857 68,068,906
Share in Associate Loss 2,099,050 298,838 39
2,374,304,882 1,559,185,076
Profit Before Tax 189,370,262 152,131,415
Provision For Taxation
--Current Income Tax 24,100,000 22,100,000
--Deferred Income Tax 12,050,000 11,100,000
--Fringe benefit Tax 2,760,000 -
Income Tax Paid for Earlier Years 26,876 -
-- Wealth Tax 135,720 79,450
Profit After Tax(before adjustment for
Minority interest) 150,297,666 118,851,965
Add:- Share of Loss transferred to Minority 4 16
Profit After Tax(after adjustment for
Minority interest) 150,297,670 118,851,981
Add/(Less) :
Profit Brought Forward From Previous Year 615,058,947 602,431,929
Less: Bonus Share Issued - 100,000,020
Less: Accumulated Share of loss in Associates 6,224,943
Balance Carried To Balance Sheet 765,356,617 615,058,947
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share
(Refer Note No. 14) 5.71 5.94
Nominal Value of Equity Share 10 10
Significant Accounting Policies 16
Notes To Accounts 17
Auditors’ Report
As Per Our Report Attached
For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta
(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
M.No. 6102
Place : New Delhi B.B. Sharma Vijay Jindal
Date : July 31st, 2006 (Company Secretary) (Joint Managing Director)

©)sPL Industries Ld.



Schedules Forming Part Of Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
Schedule - 1 Share Capital
Authorised
30,000,000 Equity Shares Of Rs. 10/ - Each 300,000,000 300,000,000
Issued Subscribed and Paid Up*
29,000,004 (Previous year 20,000,004)
Equity Shares Of Rs.10/-
Each Fully Paid Up 290,000,040 200,000,040
290,000,040 200,000,040
*Above includes 2 equity shares alloted as fully paid up
shares without payment being received in cash on
amalgamation of SPL Machines Ltd.
with the company and 10,000,002 issued as Bonus
8 share by Capitalization of accumulated balance in Profit
g & Loss Account.
S
g Schedule - 2 Reserves And Surplus
%) Capital Reserve
g At The Commencement and end of The Year 107,174 107,174
£ Add:- capital subsidy during the yrear 3,000,000
3,107,174 107,174
4 Security Premium Account
Received During the Year 540,000,000 -
Less:- Public Issue Expenses 43,255,147 -
496,744,853 -
General Reserve
At The Commencement and end of The Year 10,856,400 10,856,400
Revaluation Reserve
At The Commencement of The Year 14,126,341 14,569,795
Less: Transferred to Profit & Loss Account 367,639 443,454
At The End of The Year 13,758,702 14,126,341
Profit & Loss Account 765,356,617 615,058,947

€ SPL Industries Ltd.

1,289,823,746

640,148,862




Schedule - 3 Loan Funds

Secured

From Banks

---Term Loan* 32,925,383 43,929,383
---Other Term Loan** 5,963,107 2,070,903
---Working Capital Loan ***

In Foreign Currency 332,590,524 322,699,168
In Indian Currency 297,548,809 258,386,160
Term Loan From Financial Institution**** 143,000,000 117,000,000
Term Loan From Body Corporates***** 3,363,545 5,845,756

815,391,368 749,931,370

*Secured by first charge on Land & Building and Plant & Machinery acuired under the loan and first
(exclusive) charge over factory land &

building located at Plot No. 7, Plot No. 22 and Plot No. 39, Sector 6, Faridabad and second paripassu
charge on existing fixed assets of the

company located at Plot No. 7, 21, 22, 39 in Sector 6, 15/1, Mathura Road and Plot No. 128, Sector 24,
Faridabad. Further guarnteed by

personal guarntee of CMD and Jt. Managing Directors of the Company.
**Secured by hypothecation of specific vehicles.

***Rs. Nil ( previous Year Rs. 1031.88) secured by doucment of purchase demand promissary Note of
Rs. Nil ( previous Year Rs. 1310 Lacs),

specified ECGC Policy. Rs. 6301.39 Lacs (Previous Year 4778.97. Secured by first pari passu charge on
current assets, first

(exclusive) Charge over factory land & building located at Plot No. 7, Plot No. 22 and Plot No. 39, Sector
6, Faridabad and second paripassu

charge on existing fixed assets of the company located at Plot No. 7,21,22,39 in, Sector 6, 15/1, Mathura
Road and Plot No. 128, Sector 24,

Faridabad. All the loans are further guaranteed by personal guarantee of CMD and Jt. Managing Directors
of the Company.

****Secured by first mortgage and charge on all the company’s immovable and movable assets, both
present and future, (save and except

book debts), subject to the charge created / to be created in favour of the company’s bankers on current
assets for securing borrowings

for working capital requirements and charges created for specific equipments in favour of banks/IDBI,
ranking paripassu with the charges

created and /or to be created in favour of existing term lenders. The loan is further secured by personal
guarantee of CMD and Jt.

Managing Directors of the Company. Rs. 430/- Lacs( Previous Year Rs.610 Lacs) is further secured by
deposit of lease deeds in respect

of properties situated at 15/1, Mathura Road, Faridabad.

*****Secured by first exlusive charge on Plant & Machinery acquired under the loan. The loan is further
secured by Personal Guarantee of

CMD & Jt. Managing Director.
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SCHEDULE - 4 CONSOLIDATED FIXED/INTANGIBLE ASSETS

4  Annual Report 2005-06

N

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

ASSETS AS AT | ADDITIONS SALE/ AS AT UPTO FOR THE | Written Back UpTO AS AT AS AT

01.04.05 TRANSFER 31.03.06 01.04.05 YEAR On Sale 31.03.06 31.03.06 31.03.05
LAND 98,656,287 0 - 98,656,287 - - - -| 98,656,287 | 98,656,287
BUILDING * 122,568,825 31,615,836 - 154,184,661 27,703,633 4,307,835 - | 32,011,468 | 122,173,193 | 94,865,192
PLANT & MACHINERY 681,674,291 | 257,088,866 | 18,407,815 920,355,342 | 340,920,615 65,183,294 9,607,792 | 396,596,117 | 523,759,225 |340,753,676
VEHICLES 17,641,784 7,451,638 | 2,754,691 22,338,731 7,110,837 1,862,662 1,212,523 7,760,976 | 14,577,755| 10,530,947
FURNITURE & FIXTURE 8,697,476 5,334,836 - 14,032,312 4,567,993 598,151 - 5,166,144 8,866,167 | 4,129,483
OFFICE EQUIPMENTS 12,944,599 2,728,319 - 15,672,918 6,801,507 1,673,899 - 8,475,406 7,197,512 | 6,143,092
ASSETS BELOW 5000 3,671,775 3,176,574 - 6,848,349 3,671,775 3,176,573 - 6,848,348 1 -
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COMPUTER SOFTWARE 934,900 445,350 - 1,380,250 623,268 460,083 - 1,083,351 296,899 311,632
TOTAL 946,789,937 | 307,841,419 | 21,162,506 | 1,233,468,850 |391,399,628 | 77,262,496 10,720,315 (457,941,809 (775,527,040 555,390,309
PREVIOUS YEAR 905,122,739 63,064,328 | 21,397,130 946,789,937 | 333,572,745 68,512,360 10,685,477 | 391,399,628 | 555,390,309

* Cost of Building and accumulated depreciation includes Rs. 15.54 Lacs (previous Year Rs. 15.54 Lacs) on account of leasehold inprovements, depreciation on the same has been

amortised over the original period of lease.




Schedules Forming Part Of Consolidated Balance Sheet

Schedule - 5 Capital Work In Progress
Building

Plant & Machinery

Advance For Capital Goods

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Schedule - 6 Investment

(Long Term - Other Than Trade )
Unquoted, Fully Paid up

Elkay International P. Ltd.

-6,66,500 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- Each
Sadhu Forging Ltd.

-27,500 Equity Shares of Rs.100/- Each

Investment in Associates

Elkay Strips Ltd.

-95,750 Equity Shares of Rs. 100/- Each
(Excluding Rs.2913336 of Capital reserve
on acquisition of associats)

Less:- Accumulated loss from Associate

(A+B)

Schedule - 7 Inventory

(As Taken, Valued And Certified By The Management)
Raw Material

Stores & Spares

Fuel & Furnace Oil

Work in Progress

Packing Material

Finished Goods

Goods in Transit

Scrap

Schedule - 8 Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured)

Debts Outstanding Over Six Months
--Considered Good

--Considered Doubtful

--Less Provision for Doubtful Debts
Others*

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
22,534,706 9,641,067
66,464 406,050
30,465,181 -
53,066,351 10,047,117
6,665,000 6,665,000
27,500,000 27,500,000
34,165,000 34,165,000
9,575,000 9,575,000
8,622,832 6,523,781
952,168 3,051,219
35,117,168 37,216,219
228,201,001 151,616,094
5,557,257 2,117,050
891,467 847,180
585,201,504 464,208,924
3,840,145 1,339,770
178,254,349 130,022,691
396,565 43,473
40,575 -
1,002,382,863 750,195,182
93,927,329 76,014,944
10,462,414 1,300,098
(10,462,414) (1,300,998)
267,760,513 183,402,404
361,687,842 259,417,348

* Includes Rs.18222994/- (Previous Year Rs.29894618/-) Due from SPL Overseas a firm in which a director

is partner.
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Schedules Forming Part Of Consolidated Balance Sheet

Schedule - 9 Cash and Bank Balances
Cash on Hand

Balance With Scheduled Banks

--in Current Accounts

--in Fixed Deposit Accounts *

Balance With Post Office

--Saving Account**

*Including Interest Accrued Thereon Rs.131529/-
(Previous Year Rs. 309985/-).

**Maximum Balance During the year Rs.100/-
(Previous Year Rs. 100/-).

Schedule - 10 Loans And Advances
(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Advances Recoverable in Cash Or in Kind or
for Value To be Received

Loan & Advances

Security Deposit

Export Benefit Receivable

Balance With Excise Department

Cenvat Receivable

Advance Wealth / Income Tax

Schedule - 11 Current Liabilities And Provisions
Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors

Book Overdraft

Interest Accrued but not Due on Loans

Other Liabilities

A
Provisions
Retirement Benefits
Provision for Wealth / Income Tax
B
A+B

Schedule - 12 Sales

Sales including Excise Duty
--Export

--Domestic

Processing Charges

Export Incentives

Exchange Fluctuation (Net)

Schedule - 13 Other Income
Interest™*

Profit on Sale of fixed Assets
Other Income

*Tax Deducted at Source Rs.11,08,650/-
(Previous Year Rs. 17,90,734/-).

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
1,173,092 1,660,041
9,087,075 7,332,015
139,645,759 41,759,345
100 100
149,906,026 50,751,501
222,660,146 153,321,178
49,532,100 45,243,128
9,107,152 2,795,652
115,197,492 74,521,745
13,365 17,251
9,671,144 14,436,888
71,094,876 15,577,932
477,276,275 305,913,774
292,322,769 267,526,178
3,000,466 -

- 6,387
47,688,980 34,624,452
343,012,215 302,157,017
5,745,629 4,438,352
55,313,912 28,629,150
61,059,541 33,067,502
404,071,756 335,224,519
2,379,679,237 1,462,924,792
32,008,735 48,638,934
93,180,949 117,166,980
105,164,259 119,507,319
(2,727,224) 4,532,887
2,607,305,956 1,752,770,912
10,629,910 5,302,041
45,073 2,817,559
4,394,258 3,265,406
15,069,241 11,385,006




Schedules Forming Part Of Consolidated Balance Sheet

Schedule - 14 Manufacturing, Administrative
And Other Expenses

Raw Material Consumed

Store Consumed

Salary & Wages

Welfare Expenses

Contribution To PF. and Other Funds

Power & Fuel

Job Work Charges

Provision of Excise Duty on Closing Stock (Net)

Repair & Mainteance

--Plant & Machinery

--Building

--Others

Advertisement & Publicity
Travelling & Conveyance

Printing & Stationery

Postage Telegram and Telephone
Insurance

Auditors Remuneuration
--Audit Fees

--Tax Audit Fees

--Other Services

Legal & Professional Charges
Rent

Rates & Taxes

Quota Expenses

Vehicle Running & Maintenance
Sales Promotion

Selling Expenses
Miscellaneous Expenditure
Loss On Sale Of Fixed Assets (Net)
Provision for doubtfull debts
Bad Debts Written Off

Add/(Less) : Decrease/(Increase) in Stock
Opening Stock

--Finished Goods

--Work In Progress

--Scrap

Closing Stock
--Finished Goods
--Work In Progress
--Scrap

D (B-C)
A+D
Schedule - 15 Financial Charges
Interest
--Term Loans
--Others

Bank & Financial Charges

(Figures in Rupees)

AS AT AS AT
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
1,423,657,236 971,895,249
19,459,197 17,408,324
186,921,092 157,071,420
5,352,431 4,471,710
21,698,827 15,696,004
133,450,388 97,630,081
263,656,473 203,950,243
(1,026,116) (334,748)
20,270,989 15,341,040
2,803,487 1,869,470
3,778,052 2,224,966
150,762 70,617
15,594,668 12,770,472
6,000,574 4,256,501
13,464,603 10,777,690
4,977,217 4,579,865
796,880 711,020
112,240 100,000
81,600 106,100
1,857,086 2,010,143
808,344 652,650
4,350,062 4,036,435

- 43,471,188

2,834,664 2,372,353
5,090,211 3,460,306
184,924,153 110,633,568
46,206,413 51,127,724
4,897,565 3,653,289
9,161,416 -
1,151,070 -

2,382,481,584

1,742,013,680

130,022,691 39,546,886
464,208,924 231,556,645

= 20,610
594,231,615 271,124,141
178,254,349 130,022,691
585,201,504 464,208,924
40,575 -
763,496,428 594,231,615
(169,264,813) (323,107,474)

2,213,216,771

1,418,906,206

14,043,573 11,722,689
49,238,745 37,266,470
18,811,885 22,921,967
82,094,203 71,911,126
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ANNEXED TO THE
BALANCE SHEET FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2006

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Net Profit after Tax and before/prior period/extra ordinary items 1,502.98 1,188.52
Adjustment for :
Depreciation/Amortisation 768.95 680.69
Share in Loss of Associates 20.99 2.98
Provision for retirement benefit 13.07 8.87
Interest and financial charges 820.94 719.11
(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) 48.52 8.36
Provision for tax/Tax for Earlier years 390.69 332.79
Bad Debts/provision for doubtful debts 108.12 -
Interest Income on Loan to Body Corporates (85.96) (43.87)
Exchange Fluctuation 32.96 (25.10)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Change 3,666.26 2,872.35
Adjustment for :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivable (2,270.69) (1,401.71)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2,521.87) (8,932.40)
8 Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payable 404.94 1,061.35
Y Cash Generated from operations (721.36) (1,400.41)
I Direct Taxes Paid (558.51) (40.70)
+ Cash Flow before prior period & Extraordinary items (1,279.87) (1,441.11)
8 Prior Period Items = -
2 Net Cash (Used in) From Operating Activites (1,279.87) (1,441.11)
[
2 B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
g Purchase of Fixed Assets(Including capital work in
progress) & Intangible Assets (8,508.61) (361.68)
4 Sale/Damage of Fixed Assets 55.90 98.76
Interest Income on Loan to Body Corporates 35.96 43.87
Sale of Investment - 156.50
(Increase)/Decrease in Loan to Body Corporates (42.89) 378.83
Net Cash (Used in) /from investing activities (3,459.64) 316.28
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issue of Share Capital Including Share Premium 5,867.45 -
Capital subsidy 30.00
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (401.88) (369.72)
Proceed from Long Term Borrowings 565.94 588.73
Short-term borrowing (Net) 477.69 1,943.10
Interest Paid (821.01) (722.36)
Exchange Fluctuation 12.86 11.10
Share Issue Expenses =
Net Cash (Used in)/from Financing Activities 5,731.05 1,450.85
Net increase(decrease) in Cash and Cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 991.54 326.02
Cash and Cash equivalents at beginning of the Year 507.52 181.50
Add: Cash and cash equivalents received on amalagamation = -
507.52 181.50
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Period/Year 1,499.06 507.52

NOTES

1 Cash flow statement has been prepared following the “indirect method” as set out in the Accounting
Standerd -3 on Cash flow statement issued by the ICAI.

Auditors’ Report

As Per Our Report Attached

For Mehra Goel & Co.

Chartered Accountants

R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta

(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
M.No. 6102

Place : New Delhi B.B. Sharma Vijay Jindal

Date : July 31st, 2006 (Company Secretary) (Joint Managing Director)
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SCHEDULE- 16. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements relate to SPL Industries Ltd. (the company) and Mode Prints Ltd.
subsidiary of the company.

A. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
i. The financial statements of the subsidiary company used in the consolidation are drawn up to the

same reporting date as of the Company i.e. year ended March 31, 2006.

i. The financial statements of the Company and subsidiary companies have been prepared in
accordance with the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India and generally accepted accounting principles.

B. PRINCIPALES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements related SPL Industries Ltd and its subsidiary, associate
companies.
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i. The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-
line basis by adding together the book values of like items of assets, liabilites, income and expenses,
after fully eliminating intra-group balance and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealised profits
or losses in accordance with Accounting Standarda (AS) 21 —“Consolidated Financial Statements”
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

S
~

i. The difference between the cost of investments in the subsidiaries, over the net assets at the time
of acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or
Capital reserve as the case may be.

ii. Minority interest’s share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income of the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of
the Company.

iv. Minority interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
consolidated balance sheet sepearte from liabilities and the equity of the company’s shareholders.

v. In case of associates where the company directly or indirectly through subsidiaries holds more than
20 % of equity, investments in associates are accounted for using equity method in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS) 23- "Accounting for investments in associates in consolidated financial
statements” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india.

vi. The Company accounts for its share in the change inthe net assets of the associates, post acquisition,
after elimiating unrealised profit & losses resulting from transactions between the company and its
associates to the extent of its extent of its share, through its profit and loss account to the extent
such change is attributable to the associates’ profit and loss account and through its reserves for
the balance, based on available information.

vii. The difference between the cost of investement in the associates and the new share of net assets
at the unit of aquistion of share in the assoictaes is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill
or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and applicable accounting standards issued
by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the provision of Companies Act, 1956.

3. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost net of Modvat/cenvat wherever availed, less accumulated depreciation.
Cost of fixed assets comprises purchase price, duties, levies, borrowing cost, exchange fluctuations
and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

€ SPL Industries Ltd.
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10.

11.

12,

Advance paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets and the cost of assets not ready to put to use
before the year end, are disclosed under capital work in progress.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In accordance with the Accounting Standards (AS) 26 relating to intangible assets, all costs incurred
on technical know-how / license fee relating to production process are charges to revenue in the year
of incurrence. Costs incurred on technical know-how / license fee relating to process design / plants /
facilities are capitalized at the time of capitalization of the said plant / facility and amortized on pro-rata
basis over a period of five years. Computer software is capitalized on the date of installation and is
amotised over a period of three years

IMPARIMENT OF ASSETS

Carrying amount of cash generating units / assets is reviewed for impairment. Impairment, if any,
is recognized where the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount being the higher of net
realizable price and value in use.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation on all plant and machinery, building at Sarai, Faridabad and building at 15/1 Mathura Road,
Faridabad is provided on the Written Down value method at the rate and in the manner prescribed in
schedule XIV to the Companies Act 1956.

Depreciation on other fixed assets is provided on straight Line Method at the rate and in the manner
prescribed in schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

Depreciation is charged on pro-data basis for assets purchased / sold during the  year. Individual
assets costing Rs. 5000/- or less are depreciated in full, in the year of purchase. Depreciation on
incremental cost arising on account of translation of foreign currency liabilities for acquisition of fixed
assets is provided as aforesaid over the residual life of the respective assets.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into current and long term investments. Current investments are stated at
lower of cost or market value. Long term investments are stated at cost and provision for diminution in
value is made only if such decline is other than temporary in the opinion of management.

INVENTORY VALUATION

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value except scrap, which is valued at net
realisable value. The cost is determined by using First In First Out (FIFO) method. Finished goods &
work in progress includes costs of conversion & other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location & condition.

Excise duty on closing stock of manufactured goods, wherever applicable, is accounted for on the
basis of payment made in respect of goods cleared as also provision made for goods lying in the
factory and included in the value of such stocks.

SALES
Sales are inclusive of excise duty and net of sales tax, whenever applicable.

PROCESSING CHARGES
Processing charges are net of returns, trade discount and rebates.

PURCHASE OF RAW MATERIALS:

Cost of Purchase less modvat/cenvat credits, wherever availed, constitutes purchase price and includes
duties, freight inward and other cost directly attributable to such purchase in the year in which they are
accounted, whether the expenditure is immediate or deferred.

BORROWING COST:

Borrowing Cost that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalized
as part of cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time
to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.



13.

14.

15

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21

DIVIDEND INCOME:
Dividend on investments is accounted for as and when the right to receive the same is established.

CLAIMS:
Claim receivables are accounted for depending on the certainty of receipt & Claims payable are
accounted for at the time of acceptance.

.FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rate prevailing
at the time of transaction. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at the year-
end are translated at exchange rate applicable as of that date. Non-Monetary items denominated in
foreign currency are valued at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Any income of
expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the
profit and loss account except in cases where these relate to the acquisition of fixed assets.

Exchange differences arising on liabilities incurred or on repayment of borrowings in foreign currency
for acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying cost except borrowing utilized for acquisition
of assets within India on or after 1st April 2004 in which case these are recognized in profit & loss A/c

INCOME TAX

Provision for current income tax is made after taking credit for allowances and exemptions. In case of
matters under appeal, due to disallowance or otherwise, provision is made when the said liabilities are
accepted by the company.

In accordance with the Accounting standard 22-Accounting for Taxes on income, issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, the deferred tax for timing differences between the book & tax profit
is accounted for using the tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as
of the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary timing difference are recognized to the extent there is virtual
certainty that the assets can be realized in future.

RETIREMENT BENIFITS

Contribution to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund and family pension funds are
charged to revenue. For gratuity, the company has opted the scheme managed by Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). Amount paid / payable to the LIC towards gratuity liability is charged to
revenue. For the employees not covered by the said scheme, the gratuity liability is provided for in the
accounts on the basis of last salary drawn. Provision for earned leave is made for the value of unutilized
leave due to employee as at the end of the year on the basis of last salary drawn, in the absence of
actuarial valuation.

MODVAT/CENVAT

Modvat/cenvat claimed on capital assets is credited to assets/capital work in progress account.
Modvat/cenvat on purchase of raw materials and other materials are deducted from the cost of such
materials.

PROPOSED DIVIDEND
No dividend has been proposed to declare by the Board.

PROVISION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Show cause notices issued by various government authorities are not considered as obligation. When
the demand notice are raised against such show cause notice and are disputed by the company then
these are classified as possible obligations.

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a
present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources.
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in notes.

.PUBLIC ISSUE EXPENSE

Public issue expenses have been deducted from security premium account.
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SCHEDULE- 17 NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1. The Subsidairy Companies considered in the consolidated financial statements is:

Name of the Country of Proportion of
Subsidiaries Incorporation Owernership Interest
Mode Prints Ltd India 99.99%

The Folowing subsidaries were desubsidiarised during the year. The results of operations of these en-
tities are included in the consolidated fianancial statements till the date of cessation of the subsidiary
rlationship.

2. Associates companies considered in the consolidated financial statements is

Name of the Country of Proportion of
Associates Incorporation Owership Interest
Elkay Strips Ltd India 34.38%

3. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As At 31.03.2006  As At 31.03.2005

(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
(@) Bank Guarantee for A.E.PC. and Custom Duty 46.09 145.87
(b) Bills Discounted 2423.96 1146.27
© (c) Outstanding Letter of Credit (Net of Margin of
3 Rs. 131.21 Lacs (PY. 414.73)) 21.41 1542.05
8 (d) Disputed Liability towards Provident Fund and E.S.| 21.41 431.14
g (e) Disputed Liability towards Sales Tax 71.82 91.82
8 (f) Estimated amount of Contractremaining to be
& executed (Net of Advance) 309.23 39.30
Tg (9) Surety given to Sales Tax Department for third party 1.00 1.00
E 4. In case of default in repayment of principal amount of the term loans taken from IDBI or interest thereon
IDBI has a right to convert at par at its option 100% of the defaulted amount into fully paid up equity
5 shares of the company. The balance of aforesaid loans as at 31.03.2006 is Rs. 1430.00 Lacs. (As at

31.03.2005 Rs. 1170.00 Lacs)

5. Directors Remuneration Current Year Previous Year
(Rs in Lacs) (Rs in Lacs)

Salary 30.00 10.25
House Rent allowance 0.34
Perquisites 0.50
30.00 10.99

Director’s Sitting fees 0.18

Note: Above does not includes payment made to gratuity fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation
of India and provision made for leave encashment as the contribution provision made for the directors is
not separately identifiable.

6. Computation of Net Profit in accordance with section 198/349 of the Companies Act, 1956 has not been
given as no commission is payable to Managing/Whole Time Directors.

7. Interest income includes Rs. 35,18,057/- (Previous Year Rs.42,90,695/-) on loans to body corporates
Rs. 66,19,454/- (Previous Year Rs.9,15,942/-) on fixed deposit with bank.

8. Exchange fluctuation (net) includes Rs. (63.11) Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 83.69), which is arisen on
cancellation of forward exchange contracts.

9. Misc. Expenses includes Rs. 54.30 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 205.16 Lacs gain) for running and
maintenance of a foreign office.

10. Segment Information:
a) Primary Segment Reporting by Business Segment:
Primary business segment of the company is sale of cotton garments and made ups i.e. T-Shirts,

Cotton Sweater, Bed Sheets etc, which in the context of Accounting Standard 17 on “Segment
Reporting” issued by ICAl is considered the only business segment.

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



b) Secondary Segment Reporting (By Geographical Segments):
The Following is the distribution of the company’s consolidated sales by geographical segment,
regardless of where the goods were produced:

Current Year Previous Year
Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. In Lacs)
(i) Sales to Overseas Market 23796.79 14629.25
(i) Sales to Domestic Market 320.09 486.39

The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for overseas markets and domestic markets.
Hence, separate figures for fixed assets/additions to fixed assets etc. cannot be furnished.

11. Related Party Information: ©
(i) Relationships: 8‘
(a) Associates: IS
(i) Elkay Strips Ltd. 5
(c) Key Management Personnel (KMP): (d) Relatives of Key management personnel): &

() H.R.Gupta (i) Punita Jindal o«
(i) Vijay Jindal (i) Nikita Garg (g“
(i) Praveen Garg (iii) Avni Jindal g
(iv) Pankaj Garg (iv) Richa Jindal
(v) Mukesh Aggarwal (v) Ram Billas Aggarwal 5 1
(vi) Kiran Aggarwal
(vii)Suditi Garg

e) Enterprises over which key management personnel (KMP) or relative having significant influence:
(i) Sadhu Forging Ltd.
(i) Elkay Telelinks Ltd.
(iii) SPL Overseas
(iv) Elkay International Ltd.

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors.

Rs. In Lacs
PARTICULARS Associates Key Management | Relatives of key | Enterprises over | Grand total
Personnel Management which KMP &
Personnel their relatives have
significant
influence
Current | Previous. | Current | Previous. | Current [Previous. |Current [Previous. | Current | Previous
Year Year| Year Year| Year Year Year Year Year Year

Rent Paid 5.94 5.09 - - - -| 064 -| 6.58 5.09
Payment made by Company on behalf
of them - 11.81 - - - - - | 173.46 -| 185.27
Payment received by Company on behalf
of them - - - - - - - 2.20 - 2.20
Remuneration - -| 30.00 10.99| 8.82 8.52 - -| 38.82 9.51
Interest Received 30.98| 3019 - - - -| 420 | 11.63| 3518 | 41.82
Interest Paid - - - - - - - | 10.36 -1 10.36
Loan & advance Given 4.20 7.50 - - - -| 350 | 136.93| 7.70 | 144.43
Loan Taken - - - - - - - | 234.00 - [234.000
Security received back - - - - - - - - - -
Sale/Jobwork - - - - - -| 893 | 210.74| 893 210.74
Sale of Investment - - - 11.08 - 2011 - - -1 3119
Purchase/Job work - 0.72 - - - - 3629 | 4461| 36.29| 4533
Purchase of Fixed Assets - - - - - -1198.58 -|198.58 -
QOutstanding - - - - - - - - - -
Receivable - - - - - - 118223 | 298.95 182.23 | 298.95
Payable - - - -1 0.51 0.65 | 15.08 -1 15.59 0.65
Loan & Advances Given 412,77 392.97 - - - - | 59.23 | 52.25|472.00 | 445.22
Loan Taken (Including Interest Payable) - - - - - - - - - -

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



12. (i) The Company has issued and allotted 90,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- at a premium of Rs. 60/-
per share. Consequently:

a) Share Capital increased by Rs. 900 Lacs

)
b) Security premium Account Rs. 5400 Lacs
i) Share issue expenses Rs. 433 Lacs has been deducted from security premium account.

(

(iiiy Out of Rs. 6300 Lacs raised through IPO Rs. 4296 Lacs have been utilized for meeting capital
expenditure and share issue expenses as per the object of IPO.
As per the object of IPO the company has to invest RS. 517 Lacs towards setting of Yarn Dyeing
Plant but management has formed an opinion that this Investment is not remunerative and decided
to diversify for the expansion of existing capacity of knitted Dyed Fabric and Knitted Garments
instead of yarn Dyeing plant. Balance funds are temporarily invested with Banks as FDRs.

13. Deferred Tax

Rs. In Lacs
Deferred tax liability of SPL
Industries Ltd. at the year end
comprise of the followings:
AS at 31.03.2006 AS at 31.03.2005
(1) Deferred liability on account of:
8 Timing difference between book
§ & tax depreciation 724.26 554.30
Y 724.26 554.30
08) (2) Deferred Assets on account of:
o Disallowance under section 43B 4117 17.35
‘_é’ Provision for Doubtful Debts 30.84 00.00
= Others 02.02 08.52
75.33 25.87
5 Net Deferred Tax Liability 648.93 528.43
14. Calculation of Earning Per Share
a) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares
Number of equity share at the commencement of the year(Nos.) 2,00,00,004 1,00,00,002
Add: Bouns share issued during the year (Nos.) 1,00,00,002
Add: Public Issue during the Year (90,00,000 Shares)
(90,00,000 X 257 / 365) 63,36,986
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as
denomination (Nos.) 2,63,36,986 2,00,00,004
b) Net profit available for Equity Share Holders 15,02,97,670 11,88,51,981
c) Basic & Diluted earning per share (b/a) (Rs.) 5.71 5.94
15. Personal accounts are subject to confirmation of respective parties.
16. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary.
Auditors’ Report
As Per Our Report Attached
For Mehra Goel & Co.
Chartered Accountants
R.K. Mehra Pushpak Bansal H.R. Gupta
(Partner) (Chief Finanacial Officer) (Chairman & Managing Director)
M.No. 6102
Place : New Delhi B.B. Sharma Vijay Jindal
Date : July 31st, 2006 (Company Secretary) (Joint Managing Director)
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AUDITORS  REPORT

To,
The Members of
MODE PRINTS LIMITED

We report that we have audited the attached Balance Sheet of MODE PRINTS LTD having its registered
office at 5/66, 3rd Floor,K.C. House Padam Singh Road, Karol Bagh, New Delhi —110005, as at 31st March,
2006, Profit and Loss Account and cash flow statement for the year ended on that date Annexed thereto
and report that:

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

1. As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2003, issued by the Central Government of
India in term of section 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks as we
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we enclose in
the annexure, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 4 &5 of the said order;

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 above we state that:

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by the Law have been kept by the company so far
as appears from our examination of the books.

c) The Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account Cash Flow Statement complies with the
Accounting Standards referred to in sub Section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

e) In our opinion, and based on information and explanations given to us, none of the directors are
disqualified as on31st March, 2006,from being appointed as directors in term of clauses (g) of sub
section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies Act,1956.

f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
said Balance sheet and Profit and Loss Account read together with the significant Accounting Policies
and other notes thereon give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so
required and present a true and fair view:

(a)In the case of the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2006.

(b) In the case of the Profit & Loss Account of the Profit of the company for the year ended on that
date.

(c) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Place: Faridabad For-GUPTA RAUTELA & CO.
Date: 24th July, 2006 Chartered Accountant
( Girish K.Gupta )
Partner
M.No-97623
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our report of even date )

a.) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Fixed Assets.

b.) According to the information and explanations given to us Fixed Assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year. And no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification with books records

c.) During the year the company has not disposed off any major parts of fixed assets. So as to affect its
going concern.

. The company does not have its commercial production during the period, there is no stock hence no

physical verification of inventory.

a). To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted any loans to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 301 of the Act.

b). The rate of Interest and terms and conditions of loan given by the company secured and unsecured
are not prima facie prejudicial of the interests of the company.

c.) Not Applicable
d.) Not Applicable

e.) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not taken any loans secured or unsecured from the companies, firms or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Act. Except from its holding company
M/s. SPL Industries Ltd of an amount of Rs.685181/-

f) In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and condition of loan have been taken from
companies secured or unsecured, are not prima facie prejudicial of the interests of the company
and .

g) In our opinion, in respect of loan taken from the body corporate, listed in the register maintained
under section 301 of the companies act, 1956 the repayment of principal and interest are not yet
fallen due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of the
audit, there are adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the company and
nature of its business with regards to purchase of inventory and fixed asset and for the sale of goods
and services. We did not observe any measure weakness in internal control during the course of our
audit.

a) Accordingtotheinformation and explanations givento us, the particulars of contracts or arrangements
if any referred to in section 3010f the Act, have been entered in to the register.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, if any the transactions made in pursuance
of contracts or arrangement have been made at prices which are responsible having regard to
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.

. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company

has not accepted any deposits from the public.

. Tothe best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company

has adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size nature of its business.

. As informed to us by the company that, the maintains of the cost records have not been prescribed by

the central Government of India Under section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act,1956.

a) According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income tax, Sales-tax, Wealth
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

tax, Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise duty, Cess and other statutory dues if applicable have been
regularly deposited during the year with the appropriate authorities. According to the information
and explanations given to us and as per the books and records examined by us , there are no arrear
of undisputed statutory dues outstanding as on the date of balance sheet for a period exceeding six
months from the date they become payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books and records
examined by us no dues of Income Tax/ Sales tax/ Wealth tax/ Service tax/ Custom duty/ Excise duty
/ Cess has pending to deposit by the company.

The company has accumulated losses, which is less than fifty percent of its net worth and not incurred
any cash losses during the financial year or in the immediately preceding financial year. The net worth
of the company is positive as on 31st March 2006.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per the books and records examined
by us, The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any financial institution or bank.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not granted any loans
and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given by the
management, we are of the opinion that company is neither a chit fund nor a Nidhi, Mutual benefit
fund/ societies

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities debentures and other investments.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has given guarantee to Bank on behalf of its holding company, the terms and condition
thereof are not prejudicial to the interest of the company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company does not have any term loan.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised any short-term funds.

According to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not made any preferential
allotment of shares during the year to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

According to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not issued any debentures
during the year.

According to the information & explanations given to us, the company has not raised any money by the
way of public issue, during the year.

Based upon the audit procedure performed and information and explanations given by the management,
we report that no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

For-GUPTA RAUTELA &CO.
Chartered Accountants

(Girish K. Gupta)
Partner.
M.No-97623

Date: 24th July, 2006
Place: Faridabad
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MODE PRINTS LTD.
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2006

AMOUNT (RS.) AMOUNT ( RS.)

SCH. 31st March, 31st March,
2006 2005
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDER’S FUND
Share Capital 1 13,010,700 13,010,700
Reserves & Surplus 2 13,758,702 14,126,341
Deffered Tax Liabilities 36,621 36,621
TOTAL 26,806,023 27,173,662
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS 3
Gross Block 27,802,442 27,802,442
Less : Depreciation 7,506,869 7,040,370
© Net Block 20,295,573 20,762,072
Q
§ CURRENT ASSETS,LOANS AND ADVANCES
% Cash and Bank Balances 4 82,853 168,741
& Loan and Advances 5 1,478,252 1,403,089
= 1,561,105 1,571,830
3
=
< Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISION
5 Current Liabilities 6 696,381 1,068,581
Provisions 325,000 350,000
Net Current Assets 539,724 153,249
profit and loss Account 5,970,725 6,258,341
TOTAL 26,806,023 27,173,662
ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES TO 9

ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

FOR-GUPTA RAUTELA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Girish K. Gupta

Partner
PLACE : FARIDABAD Pankaj Garg Satish Garg
DATE : 24th July, 2006 Director Director

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



MODE PRINTS LTD.
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2006

INCOME AMOUNT ( RS.) AMOUNT (RS.)
SCH. 31st March, 31st March,
2006 2005
Other Income 7 678,210 670,699
TOTAL 678,210 670,699 ©
Administration & Other Exp. 8 195,477 344,833 3
Depreciation 466,499 §
Less: Transferred From Revaluation Reserve 367,639 98,860 71,386 5
294,336 416,219 g
Cg
profit/(loss) for the year 383,874 254,480 £
Less: Provision for income Tax 100,000 100,000 <
Profit after Tax 283,874 154,480 57
Add: Excess Provision for Income Tax 2004-05 3,742 -
BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 287,616 154,480
Net Profit Available for Equity Shareholders 287,616 154,480
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares 1,301,070 1,301,070
Basic/Diluted Earning Per Share 0.22 0.12
Nominal Value of Equity Share 10 10

ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES
TO ACCOUNTS 9
FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR- GUPTA RAUTELA & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Girish K. Gupta

Partner
PLACE : FARIDABAD Pankaj Garg Satish Garg
DATE : 24th July, 2006 Director Director

©)sPL Industries Ld.



MODE PRINTS LTD.
SCHEDULE FORMING PART OF
THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31,st MARCH, 2006

AMOUNT (RS.)  AMOUNT (RS.)

31st March, 31st March,
2006 2005
SCHEDULE-1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
13,50,000 Equity Share Capital OF Rs. 10/-each 13,500,000 13,500,000
Issued,Subscribed & Paid-up Capital
1301070 Equity Share of RS.10\- Each Fully Paid UP 13,010,700 13,010,700
(Previous Year 1301070)
TOTAL 13,010,700 13,010,700
© SCHEDULE-2
3 RESERVES & SURPLUS
§ A)Fixed Assets Revaluation Reserve
5 Balance as per Last Balance Sheet 14,126,341 14,569,795
§' Less: Transferred to Profit & Loss Account 367,639 443,454
I TOTAL 13,758,702 14,126,341
g B)Profit & Loss Account :
< Balance as per Last Balance Sheet (6,258,341) (6,412,821)
5 Add : Profit fot the year 287,616 154,480
TOTAL (5,970,725) (6,258,341)
SCHEDULE-3 FIXED ASSETS
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
BAL As On |ADDITION/ (TOTAL AS ON
PARTICULARS 01.04.2005 SALE 31.3.06 UPTO | FORTHE UPT0 AS AT AS AT
31.03.2005 YEAR 31.03.06 31.03.06 31.03.05
LAND AND BUILDING
LAND 15,500,000 - | 15,500,000 - - - | 15,500,000 | 15,500,000
Admn.Block 1,922,911 - 1,922,911 728,754 59,708 788,462 | 1,134,449 | 1,194,157
Factory Building 10,379,531 - | 10,379,531 | 6,311,616 | 406,791 | 6,718,407 | 3,661,123 | 4,067,915
TOTAL 27,802,442 - | 27,802,442 | 7,040,370 | 466,499 | 7,506,869 | 20,295,573 | 20,762,072
Previous Year 27,802,442 - | 27,802,442 | 6,525,530 | 514,840 | 7,040,370 | 20,762,072 | 21,276,912
AMOUNT ( RS.) AMOUNT ( RS.)
31st March, 31st March,
2006 2005
SCHEDULE-4
Cash on Hand 1,580 84,303
Balance with Scheduled Bank :-
-In current Account 81,273 84,438
TOTAL 82,853 168,741

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



SCHEDULE-5
LOANS AND ADVANCES

( Unsecured but Concidered Good )

( Advances Recoverable in cash or kind
or for value to be Received)

Loan to Summanglam footwear (p) Itd
Security Deposits

Tax Deducted at Sources
Tax Deducted at Sources
Tax Deducted at Sources

A.Y. 2003-2004)
A.Y. 2004-2005)
A.Y. 2005-2006)
A.Y. 2006-2007)

o~ o~ o~ —

Tax Deducted at Sources
TOTAL

SCHEDULE-6

A. CURRENT LIABILITIES
Expenses Payable

Loan from Holding company
TOTAL

B. PROVISIONS

Provision for income Tax

TOTAL A+B

SCHEDULE-7
Rent Received
Interest Received
TOTAL

** TDS on Interest Rs 17245/- Previous Year 14776/-

SCHEDULE-8
ADMINISTRATION & OTHER EXPENSES
Rates & Taxes

Bank Charges

Accounting Charges

Security Charges

Printing & Stationery
Professional Charges
Conveyance Expenses

Esi (Penality)

AUDITORS REMUNERATIOM
Audit fees

TOTAL

AMOUNT (RS.)

AMOUNT (RS.)

31st March, 31st March,
2006 2005
39,324 39,324
758,250 698,644
279,100 279,100
110,317 110,317
- 136,328

139,376 139,376
151,885 -
1,478,252 1,403,089
11,200 16,020
685,181 1,052,561
696,381 1,068,581
325,000 350,000
325,000 350,000
1,021,381 1,418,581
600,000 600,000
78,210 70,699
678,210 670,699
100,480 231,240
1,074 256
36,000 36,000
42,000 42,000
480

5,000

4,723 16,550
2,287

11,200 11,020
195,477 344,833
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SCHEDULE: -9
ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles and the provision of the Companies Act, 1956 as adopted
consistently by the company.

2. The Company follows the Mercantile System of Accounting.

Depreciation on fixed assets has been charged on written down value method at the rate prescribed in
schedule xiv of the companies Act, 1956, on prorate basis.

4. Fixed assets have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of construction is inclusive
of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental or installation charges.

5. Provision for current Income Tax is made after taking credit for allowances and exemptions. In case
of matter under appeal, and due to disallowances or otherwise, provision is made when the company
accepts the said liabilities.

In accordance with the accounting standard —22 accounting for taxes on income, issued by the ICAI,
the deferred tax for timing differences between the books and tax profit is accounted for using the
tax rates and the tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted as of the Balance Sheet
date. Deferred tax arising from temporary timing difference are recognized to the extent there is virtual
certainty that the assets can be realized in future.

B.NOTES ON ACCOUNTS

©
E 1. Balance of sundry debtors, sundry creditors, and loans and advances are subject to confirmation.
I 2. The Company has not in operation during the year, only having rental Income and In accordance with
5 the accounting Standard-22 on accounting for taxes issued by the ICAI, there is no timing difference.
g Hence no provision of deferred Tax during the year.
- 3. Additional information pursuant to part Il of Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 1956 are not
g applicable.
£ Expenditure and income in Foreign Currency
Earnings in Foreign Exchange NIL
6 Expenditure in Foreign Currency NIL
Value of goods Imported NIL
4. Auditors Remuneration includes:
Audit Fee 11200.00
5. Information in respect of small-scale industries as required in part Il of schedule VI of Companies Act,
1956 are not available and the same is not given.
6. There is no Director Remuneration paid during the year.
7. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.
8. The company is not in operation and accounting standard—17 issued by ICAI not applicable.
9) Related Party Disclosures:- Disclosures as required by the Accounting Standard- 18 “Related Party

Disclosures” are given below :
a) List of Related Party

SPL Industries Ltd. (Holding Company
b)  Transactions with related Parties

Nature of Transactions 2005-2006 2004-2005
Associate Key Manage Associate Key Manage
Companies Personnel Companies Personnel
& Relative & Relative
1) Rent 600000 - 600000 -

AS PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE
FOR- GUPTA RAUTELA & CO,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Girish K. Gupta

Partner

PLACE : FARIDABAD Pankaj Garg Satish Garg
DATE : 24th July, 2006 Director Director

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



Balance Sheet Abstract & Company’s General Business Profile
| Registration Details

Registration No. [4a]o]5]7]8] State Code

Balance SheetDate [3]1] [0] 3] [2] 0] O] 6]

Il Capital Raised During The Year (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue Rights Isuue
N[ 1] L] N1 L]
Bonus Issue Private Placement
IN[I]L] INJT L]
Il Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amounts in Rs. Thousands)
Total Liabilities Total Assets
2[6[8[0]6] 2 [6 [8 [0 [6]
Sources Of Funds
Paid Up Capital Reserve & Surplus
1 [3[of1]1] 1 [3[7]5]8]
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
IN[T]L] IN 1 L]
Others (Deffered Tax Liability)
0[3]7]
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets Investments
[2][of2]9]5] INJITL]
Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
5[4]0] INJT[L]
Accumulated Losses
EEIE

IV Performance Of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Turn Over Total Expenditure
[2T9T4]
Profit/Loss Before Tax Profit/Loss After Tax
LeL-[ [ [ [3]8]4] LI+l [-T [2]8]4]
(Please tick appropriate box + for profit,-for loss)
Earning Per Share(Rs.) Basic/Diluted Dividend Rate %
| [of . [2]2] N1 [L]

V  Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company
(As Per Monetary Terms)
ltem CodeNo.| | [NJIJL] [ ]
(ITC Code No.)
Product Description | [ [ | [ [NJIJL] [ [ [ [ [ [ [ [T T[]
ltem Code No.[ [ [NTITTL] T ]
(ITC Code No.)
Product Description | [ [ | [ [N[IJL] [ T T [ [T T TTTTTT]

For Gupta Rautela & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Girish K. Gupta

Partner
PLACE : FARIDABAD Pankaj Garg Satish Garg
DATE : 24th July, 2006 Director Director

©
Q
T
]
<]
Y
=
£
o]
a
[9)
o
]
>
c
C
<

(@))
—_

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of ELKAY STRIPS LIMITED.,

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of ELKAY STRIPS LIMITED as at 31st March, 2006 and
the related Profit & Loss Account of the Company for the year ended on that date annexed thereto.
These financial statement are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statement based on our audit.

2. We have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

3. As required by Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order 2003, issued by the Central Government of India
in terms of sub-section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956(the ‘Act’) and on the basis of
such checking and verification of books and records of Company as considered necessary and the
information and explanations given to us during the course of audit, we enclose in the annexure, a
statement of the matters specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said order

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report that:-

() We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(II) Inour opinion, proper books of account, as required by law have been kept by the company so far
as appears from our examination of such books.

(II) The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account referred to in this report are in agreement with
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the books of account;

(IV.) Inour opinion the Balance Sheet & Profit and Loss Account dealt with by this report comply with the
applicable Accounting Standards referred to in Sub Section 3( C ) of Section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

(V) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on 31st March, 2006 and
taken on record by the Board of Director, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2006 from being appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub section(l) of section 274 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

(VI.) In our opinion, and to the best of our information and accounting to the explanations given to us,
the said Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account together with notes appearing in Schedule
‘H’ attached to the Balance Sheet give in the prescribed manner the information required by the
Companies Act 1956, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

(@) Insofarasitrelates to the Balance Sheet of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31stMarch,
2006 and:

(b) Inso far as it relates to the Profit and Loss Account of the Loss of the company for the year
ended on that date.

For SENSONS
Chartered Accountants
S.K. JAIN
PLACE: FARIDABAD PARTNER
DATE :01.07.2006 M.No. 82843

€ SPL Industries Ltd.



ANNEXURE TO AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to the paragraph 3 of our report of even date)

i. a The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

b The Company has a phased program of physical verification of its fixed assets which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance
with such program, the management has physically verified the fixed assets and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification

¢ During the year, in our opinion, the Company has not disposed off a substantial part of its fixed
assets.

i. a The inventories of the company have been physically verified by the management during the year.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

b In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the procedures of
physical verification of inventory followed by the management were found reasonable and adequate
in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.
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¢ Onthe basis of our examination of record of inventory, in our opinion, the Company has maintained
proper records of inventory and the discrepancies noticed on physical verification between
the physical stocks and the book records were not material in relation to the operations of the
Company.

ii. a The Company has not given any loan to any party covered under the register maintained u/s 301
of the companies act, 1956.Therefore sub clauses (iii) (b) (c) & (d) of clause 4 of the order are not
applicable.

b The company has unsecured loan from 1 party amounting to Rs.412.77 Lacs covered under the
register maintained u/s 301 of the companies act, 1956

¢ The rate of interest & the terms and conditions of such loans taken by the company, secured or
unsecured are not prima facie prejudicial to the interests of the company.

o

The Company is regular in repaying the principal & interest , wherever applicable.

=

n our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, having regard to the
explanations,there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods.
Further, on the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us,
we have neither come across nor have we been informed of any instance of major weaknesses in the
aforesaid internal control procedures.

v. a. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has entered the particulars
of contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 , in the Register
maintained under that Section.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made
in pursuance of contracts or arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301
of the Act have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to the prevailing market
prices at the relevant time.

vi. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the Public during the year under report.

vii. In our Opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with its size and nature of its
business.

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government of India has not
prescribed the maintenance of Cost Records under Clause (d) of Sub-Section (1) of the Section 209 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

€ SPL Industries Ltd.
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ix a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books of accounts

and records as produced and examined by us, in our opinion, the Company has been regular in
depositing during the year the undisputed statutory dues in respect of Provident Fund , Employees
State Insurance, Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess
and other material statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

ix b) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the books of accounts

Xi

Xii

Xiii

Xiv

XV

XVi

XVii

xviii

XiX

XX

XXi

and records as produced and examined by us, as at 31st March, 2006, there were no disputed
dues on account of sales tax, income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, Service Tax, Excise duty and cess
matters that have not been deposited.

In our opinion the accumulated losses of the company as at 31st march, 2006 are more than fifty
percent of its networth. the company has incurred cash losses of Rs..36.76 lacs in the financial year
ended on that date and in the immediately preceding financial year the cash Loss was Rs. 41.96
Lacs.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given by management, we are
of the opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to any financial institution,
bank during the year.

The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of pledge of
shares, debentures and other securities.

The provisions of any special statue as specified under clause (xiii) of paragraph 4 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
dealer or trader in securities.

The Company has not given any guarantee for loan taken by other from bank or Financial Institutions
during the year.

The Company has not taken any Term Loans during the year.

Based on the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the Company, in our opinion, there are no funds raised on a short term basis which have been
used for long term investment, and vice versa.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment of shares to parties and companies covered in the register maintained under Section 301 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
issued any secured debentures during the period covered by our report. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 4(xix) of the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money through public issues during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India and according to the information
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instances of fraud on or by the
Company either noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the
management.

For SENSONS
Chartered Accountants
S.K. JAIN

PLACE: FARIDABAD PARTNER
DATE :01.07.2006 M.No. 82843



ELKAY STRIPS LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH ,2006

PARTICULARS SCHEDULE AS AT 31.03.2006 AS AT 31.03.2005

A SOURCES OF FUND
1 SHARE HOLDER’S FIND

Equity Share Capital A 26,689,700.00 26,689,700.00
2 LOAN FUND: §
Unsecured Loan B 41,276,689.40 39,296,769.46 §
3 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 3,101,070.00 4,494,756.00 §_
Total 71,067,459.40 70,481,225.46 %)
g
S
B APPLICATION OF FUNDS: <

1 FIXED ASSETS:
Gross Block C 72,556,103.68 72,556,103.68
Less: Depreciation 29,353,972.53 43,202,131.15 25,399,403.59 47,156,700.09

65

2 CURRENT ASSETS, LOAN & ADVANCES:

a  Sundry Debtors D 2,378,808.51 3,143,072.51
b Cash & Bank Balance E 2,530,619.50 3,039,345.72
¢ Loan & Advances F 1,620,263.84 2,301,524.47
6,529,691.85 8,483,942.70
LESS: CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
a  Current Liabilities G 3,747,831.00 2,781,860.85 4,136,830.00 4,347,112.70
3 PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 25,083,467.40 18,977,412.67
Total 71,067,459.40 70,481,225.46

Significant Accounting Policies &
Notes to Account H

As per auditors report attached
for SENSONS
Chartered Accountants

S.K.JAIN

PARTNER

PLACE: DELHI N.K.AGGARWAL MAHENDER GARG
DATED:01.07.2006 (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (DIRECTOR)

©)sPL Industries Ld.
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ELKAY STRIPS LIMITED
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31ST MARCH 2006

SCHEDULE FOR THE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED YEAR ENDED
31.03.2006 31.03.2005
INCOME
Sales (Net of Returns) 425,250.00
Other Income 671,077.00 7,425,147.19
Total (A) 671,077.00 7,850,397.19
EXPENDITURES
Consumption of Raw-Material,
Accessories & other Mfg. Expenses I - 424,748.00
Total (B) - 424,748.00
Total(A)- (B) 671,077.00 7,425,649.19
Staff remuneration benefit administrative, - -
selling & general expenses Il 563,164.57 1,169,194.40
Interest & Financial charges Y 3,112,966.22 3,026,660.99
Depreciation 3,954,568.94 3,960,356.94
7,630,699.73 8,156,212.33

Profit/Loss after Interest and Depreciation

Less : Income Tax for earlier Year

Less: Provision for Deferred Tax for Current Year

Net profit/(Loss)

Add/Less: Opening Balance of Profit

Balance of Loss transferred to Balance Sheet

Earning per share-basic & diluted

(Rs per equity share)

refer note No. 13 of schedule |

(6,959,622.73)
(540,118.00)
1,393,686.00

(6,106,054.73)

(18,977,412.67)
(25,083,467.40)

(-)22.88

(730,563.14)

138,744.00

(869,307.14)

(18,108,105.53)
(18,977,412.67)

(-)3.26

As per auditors report attached

for SENSONS

Chartered Accountants

S.K.JAIN
PARTNER

PLACE: DELHI
DATED:01.07.2006

N.K.AGGARWAL
(MANAGING DIRECTOR)

MAHENDER GARG
(DIRECTOR)



ELKAY STRIPS LIMITED
SHEDULE ‘A’ TO ‘G’ FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31st MARCH’2006

SCHEDULE ‘A
SHARE CAPITAL: THIS YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
AUTHORISED :-400000 Equity Share of Rs. 100/-each 40,000,000.00 40,000,000.00

(Previous year 400000 Equity Share of Rs. 100/-each)
ISSUED,SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

(266897 Equity Share of Rs.100/-full paid up) 26,689,700.00 26,689,700.00 ©
O

]

SCHEDULE ‘B’ «
UNSECURED LOANS: g
From SPL Industries Ltd ( Corporate Bodies) 41,276,689.40 39,296,769.46 T
41,276,689.40 39,296,769.46 ‘E,“

———— _ =

<
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SCHEDULE-"C’ FIXED ASSETS

DESCRIPTION GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Cost as at | Sale During Cost as at Dep As at Dep for [Total Dep .Up to W.D.V.as on W.D.V.as on
1.04.2005 the Year 31.03.2006 31.03.2005 the Year 31.03.2006 31.03.2006 31.03.2005
Land ( Freehold) 1,235,708.00 - | 1,235,708.00 - - -| 1,235,708.00 | 1,235,708.00
Building 32,025,503.70 - | 32,025,503.70 4,139,709.14 | 1,053,809.95 5,193,519.09 | 26,831,984.61 | 27,885,794.56
Plant & Machinery 27,259,683.25 - | 27,259,683.25 12,654,702.90 | 2,278,982.25 | 14,933,685.15 | 12,325,998.10 | 14,604,980.35
Tubewell, Drainage & Storage Tank 229,776.68 - 229,776.68 227,798.43 1,617.69 229,416.12 360.56 1,978.25
Electric Installation & Fittings 6,576,171.38 -| 6576,171.38 4,891,070.68 252,594.10 5,143,664.78 | 1,432,506.60 | 1,685,100.70
Laboratory Equipments 153,859.52 - 153,859.52 153,859.52 - 153,859.52 - -
Weighing Scale 54,318.27 - 54,318.27 54,318.27 - 54,318.27 - -
Furniture & Fixture 399,441.33 - 399,441.33 163,257.58 18,719.75 181,977.33 217,464.00 236,183.75
Office Equip, Computer 1,648,134.58 - | 1,648,134.58 837,389.75 63,350.39 900,740.14 747,394.44 810,744.83
Fire extinguishers 185,955.55 - 185,955.55 61,235.95 19,227.80 80,463.75 105,491.80 124,719.60
Pollution Plant 212,716.84 - 212,716.84 70,701.60 21,994.92 92,696.52 120,020.32 142,015.24
Vechiles 2,574,834.58 - 2,574,834.58 2,145,359.77 244,272.09 2,389,631.86 185,202.72 429,474.81
TOTAL 72,556,103.68 - | 72,556,103.68 | 25,399,403.59 | 3,954,568.94 | 29,353,972.53 |43,202,131.15 (47,156,700.09
Previous Year Figures 73,401,574.84 | 845,471.16 | 72,556,103.68 21,439,046.65 | 3,960,356.94 | 25,399,403.59 | 47,156,700.09 | 51,962,528.19
SCHEDULE ‘D’
SUNDRY DEBTORS :

(Including debts in respect of goods supplied

against documents th. Banks)

Due for a period exceeding six month 2,378,808.51 3,143,072.51

Others - -
2,378,808.51 3,143,072.51

€ SPL Industries Ltd.
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SCHEDULE ‘F’

CASH AND BANK BALANCES:

Cash in Hand

BALANCES WITH SCHEDULED BANKS
Current account

Fixed Deposits

SCHEDULE ‘F

LOANS & ADVANCES:

(Unsecured considered Good)
Advance recoverable in cash or in Kind
Excise DutyRecoverable

Advance Income Tax

TDS by Parties

Cheque in hand

Security Deposit

SCHEDULE ‘G’
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Sundry Creditors

for Goods & Services

for Capital Goods -

Other Liabilities

TDS Payable

SCHEDULE ‘I TO ‘IV' FORMING OF THE

1,042.85

779,576.65
1,750,000.00

2,530,619.50

523,952.84
47.00

125,009.00

971,255.00

1,620,263.84

3,010,000.00

41,209.00
696,622.00

3,747,831.00

PROFIT & LOSS A/C FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2006

SCHEDULE ‘I
SALES
Elastic Tape Sale

OTHER INCOME

Interest received

Rent Received

Profit on sale of Fixed Assets
Insurance received

Security With Telephone Refund

SCHEDULE ‘I
RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED & OTHER
ACCESSORIES

THIS YEAR

77,077.00
594,000.00

671,077.00

15,115.85

1,274,229.87
1,750,000.00
3,039,345.72

476,723.84
47.00
552,655.00
278,625.63
22,218.00
971,255.00

2,301,524.47

3,434,748.00

700,707.00

1,375.00
4,136,830.00

PREVIOUS YEAR
425,250.00
425,250.00

802,690.35
508,500.00
6,104,528.84
6,450.00
2,978.00
7,425,147.19

424,748.00
424,748.00



SCHEDULE ‘lir
STAFF REMUNERATION, BENEFITS, ADMINISTRATIVE
SELLING & GENERAL EXPENSES

Payment to and Provision for employees 69,237.00 312,177.55
Worker's Walfare Expenses 885.00 2,475.00
Rates, Taxes and Fees 72,191.00 138,514.00
Prevoious year expenses - 13,184.00
Conveyance Expenses 2,5674.00 6,709.00
Postage & Telegram - 27.00
Printing & Stationery 3,000.00 358.00 §
Insurance 121,016.00 127,921.00 8
Subscription - 12,000.00 %
Council Charges - 5,781.00 15y
Legal & Professional Charges 6,228.00 6,227.00 %
Auditor’s Remunerations 19,440.00 19,440.00 é’
Sales Tax Paid 3,179.00 74,598.00 <
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,150.57 250.85 69
Bad debts written off 264,264.00 -
Travelling Expences - 449,532.00
563,164.57 1,169,194.40

SCHEDULE ‘IV’ -
INTEREST AND FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank Charges 9,145.22 7,572.99
Interest A/c 3,103,821.00 3,019,088.00

3,112,966.22 3,026,660.99

©)sPL Industries Ld.
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Balance Sheet Abstract & Company’s General Business Profile

| Registration Details

Registration No. lalols]7]8] State Code

Balance SheetDate [3] 1] [o0] 3] [ 2] o] o] 6]

Il Capital Raised During The Period (Amount in Rs. Thousands)

Public Issue Rights Isuue
Bonus Issue Private Placement
IN[ 1] L] N [T L]
Il Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds (Amounts in Rs. Thousands)
Total Liabilities Total Assets
2l6[8lo]6] 2 [6 [8 [0 [6]
Sources Of Funds
Paid Up Capital Reserve & Surplus
Llslole[4] | 1 [3 [7 [5[8]
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans
NI
Others (Deffered Tax Liability)
LI [ Tolal7]
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets Investments
L [2]of2]9]5] IN [T JL ]
Net Current Assets Misc. Expenditure
[1]s[s[6]6]4]5] NI
Accumulated Looses
LI [sfof7[1]
IV Performance Of Company (Amount in Rs. Thousands)
Turn Over Total Expenditure
LI T [ [el7]s8] LI [ [ [ofolal]
Profit/Loss Before Tax Profit/Loss After Tax
LI+] [ [ [3]8]4] LI+] LI [2]8]4]
(Please tick appropriate box + for profit,-for loss)
Earning Per Share(Rs.) Dividend Rate %
L lol. [2]2] N L]

V  Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company
(As Per Monetary Terms)
ltemCodeNo.| | [NJIJL] [ ]
(ITC Code No.)

ProductDescription | [ IN[ITJLT T T T T T T 1T 1T1]

temCodeNo. [T [ [T T]

(ITC Code No.)

Product Description | | | |N|||L| | | | | | | | | |

S.K.JAIN
PARTNER

PLACE: DELHI N.K.AGGARWAL MAHENDER GARG
DATED:01.07.2006 (MANAGING DIRECTOR) (DIRECTOR)



